
1 I 

~.~ 
DAN HAVERTY 
Interim Fire Chief 

D'Elman Clark 
Board President 
Division 6 

Grant Goold 
Board Vice President 
Division 2 

Ted Wood 
Board Secretary 
Division 4 

Cinthia Saylors 
Board Member 
Division 1 

Robert Webber 
Board Member 
Division 3 

Jennifer Sheetz 
Board Member 
Division 5 

Brian Rice 
Board Member 
Division 7 

Gay Jones 
Board Member 
Division 8 

John Costa 
Board Member 
Division 9 

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200 · Mather, California 95655 · Phone (916) 859-4300 · Fax (916) 859-3700 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS - REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

Thursday, July 27, 2023 - 6:00 PM 
Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 

10545 Armstrong Avenue 
Board Room - Second Floor 

Mather, California 
& 

Remotely Via Zoom 
Webinar ID: 827 3461 0232 # 

Passcode: metro2101 
Phone: 1 (669) 444-9171 or 1 (669) 900 6833 

if Passcode: 838771796 # 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82734610232?pwd=SFILQ1Znd25RSmlhdXZV 

QVh4d 1 VWZz09 

The mission of the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District is to provide professional 
and compassionate protection, education and service to our community. 

The Public's health and well-being are the top priority for the Board of Directors of 
the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District and you are urged to take all 
appropriate health safety precautions. To view the meeting via the Zoom 
Application, please click on the link above. 

Members of the public seeking to attend and to address the Board who require 
reasonable accommodations to access the meeting, based on disability or other 
reasons, should contact the following person at least forty-eight (48) hours in 
advance of a Regular meeting to make arrangements for such reasonable 
accommodations: 

Marni Rittburg 
Board Clerk-

(916) 859-4305 
rittburg.marni@metrofire.ca.gov 

The Board will convene in open session at 6:00 p.m. 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties 



Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
10545 Armstrong Ave. , Suite 200 · Mather, California 95655 · Phone (916) 859-4300 · Fax (916) 859-3700 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING THURSDAY, JULY 27, 2023 

► CALL TO ORDER 

► ROLL CALL 

► PLEDGE TO FLAG 

METRO CABLE ANNOUNCEMENT: 
This meeting of the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District will be cablecast on Metro Cable 14, 
the local government affairs channel on Comcast, Consolidated Communications and AT&T U
Verse cable systems. This meeting is also webcast at metro14Iive.saccounty.gov. Today's 
meeting replays at 6:00 p.m. on both Sunday, July 30, 2023 and Monday, July 31, 2023 on 
Channel 14. This meeting can also be viewed at youtube.com/metrocable14. 

PUBLIC OPPORTUNITY TO DISCUSS MATTERS OF PUBLIC INTEREST WITHIN 
DISTRICT JURISDICTION INCLUDING ITEMS ON OR NOT ON AGENDA: 
The Board of Directors of the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District appreciates and encourages 
public interest and welcomes questions and opinions at its meetings. Public members wishing 
to address the Board are requested to first be recognized by the presiding officer and identify 
themselves for the record. The presiding officer may, in the interest of time and good order, limit 
the number of public member presentations. Speakers' comments will be limited to three (3) 
minutes (Per Section 31 of the Board of Directors Policies and Procedures). 

In accordance with Section 31 of the Board of Directors Policies and Procedures, members of 
the Public requesting their written comments be read into the meeting record must be present or 
have a representative present to read their comments during the time allotted. 

CONSENT ITEMS: 
Matters of routine approval including but not limited to action summary minutes, referral of 
issues to committee, committee referrals to the full Board, items that require yearly approval, 
declaration of surplus equipment, and other consent matters. The Consent Agenda is acted 
upon as one unit unless a Board member requests separate discussion and/or action. 

CONSENT ITEMS Page No. 

1. Action Summary Minutes 6 
Recommendation: Approve the Action Summary Minutes for the Regular Boa(d 
Meeting of June 22, 2023. 

2. Approval of the Purchase of Microsoft Office Licenses 
Recommendation: Authorize the District to procure the Microsoft Office 
licenses from Dell using the Riverside County's Master Agreement No. 
8084445 - Contract ID PSA-0001524. 

14 



Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200 · Mather, California 95655 · Phone (91 6) 859-4300 · Fax (916) 859-3700 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING THURSDAY, JULY 27, 2023 

ACTION ITEMS: 

1. Final Reading and Adoption of Ordinance 2023-02 Accepting the Nexus 16 
Study to update updating the Fee Schedule For Operational Permits, Plan 
Review, New Construction Inspections, General Fire and Life Safety 
Inspections, and Other Miscellaneous Services. 
(Assistant Chief Law) 
Recommendation: Remove Ordinance 2015-02 and Adopt Ordinance 2023-02, 
Amending Fee Schedule for Operational Permits, Plan Review, New Construction 
Inspections, General Fire and Life Safety Inspections, and Other Miscellaneous 
Services. 

2. Award Recommendation - RFP 23-02 Workers' Compensation 70 
Third-Party Administration and Cost Containment Services 
(Melisa Maddux, HR Manager & Courtney Moore, Purchasing Agent) 
Recommendation: Authorize the Fire Chief to enter into a contract for TPA 
services with lntercare Holdings Insurance Services, Inc. 

2. Adopt Resolution Authorizing the Fire Chief to Approve Medical 72 
Treatment for Workers' Compensation Injuries 
(Interim Chief Haverty) 
Recommendation: Authorize the Fire Chief to approve medical treatment for 
Workers' Compensation Injuries. 

REPORTS: 

1. PRESIDENT'S REPORT - (President Clark) 

2. FIRE CHIEF'S REPORT - (Interim Fire Chief Haverty) 
OPERATIONS REPORT - (Deputy Chief Mitchell) 
ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT - (Deputy Chief Bailey) 
SUPPORT SERVICES REPORT - (Deputy Chief Wagaman) 

3. SMFD - FIREFIGHTERS LOCAL 522 REPORT - (Firefighter Mike Gildone for BC Matt 
Cole, Local 522 Vice President) 

4. COMMITTEE AND DELEGATE REPORTS 
All Committee Meetings will be held at the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District Board Room, 
10545 Armstrong Avenue, Mather, California unless otherwise specified. 

A. Executive Committee - (President Clark) 
Next Meeting: TBD 

B. Communications Center JPA - (DC Wagaman) 
Next Meeting: August 22, 2023 at 9:00 A 

C. Finance and Audit Committee - (Director Wood) 
Next Meeting: July 27, 2023 at 5:30 PM 



Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200 · Mather, California 95655 · Phone (916) 859-4300 · Fax (916) 859-3700 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

D. Policy Committee - (Director Costa) 
Reported Out: June 8, 2023 
Next Meeting: August 10, 2023 

CLOSED SESSION: 

THURSDAY, JULY 27, 2023 

The Board will convene in closed session to meet on the following matters: 

1. PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION § 54956.9 (A) 
- ONE (1) MATTER OF WORKERS COMPENSATION SETTLEMENT 
AUTHORITY. 
Rick Griggs and the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
Claim# 402105BGF6B-0001, - Workers Compensation Settlement Authority Colin 
Connor of Lenahan, Slater, Pearse & Majernik, LLP 

2. PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION § 54956.9 (A) 
- FOUR (4) MATTERS OF WORKERS COMPENSATION COMPROMISE AND 
RELEASE. 

1. Thomas Hutchinson and the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
Claim# 4A2211JPCT8-0001 - Workers Compensation Settlement Authority Colin 
Connor of Lenahan , Slater, Pearse & Majernik, LLP 

2. Troy Nogosek and the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
Claim# SMDI - 8957A1; SMDI - 8957A2; SMDP- 549654; SMDP - 549780-
Workers' Compensation Settlement Authority 
Breanna Owen of Lenahan, Slater, Pearse & Majernik, LLP 

3. Craig Sweeney and the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
Claim# SMDO -549498; SMDP - 549661 ; 4A2209N355S-0001 - Workers' 
Compensation Settlement Authority 
Breanna Owen of Lenahan, Slater, Pearse & Majernik, LLP 

4. Richard Turner and the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District , 
Claim# 4A2201 0MQBHY-0001; 4A2201 0MQ9T-0001 - Workers' Compensation 
Settlement Authority 
Colin Connor of Lenahan, Slater, Pearse & Majernik, LLP 

3. PERSONNEL MATTERS - PUBLIC EMPLOYEE EMPLOYMENT 
Pursuant to California Government Code§ Sections 54957 and 54957.6 
Fire Chief Contract and Discussion 
Negotiator: John Lavra, General Counsel. 

CLOSED SESSION REPORT OUT 

BOARD MEMBER QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 



Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200 · Mather, California 95655 · Phone (916) 859-4300 · Fax (916) 859-3700 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING THURSDAY, JULY 27, 2023 

ADJOURNMENT 

NEXT BOARD MEETING(S): 
Unless specified differently, all meetings of the Board are held at Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District, 10545 
Armstrong Avenue, Mather, CA 

• Regular Board Meeting - August 10, 2023 at 6:00 PM 

The following action and presentation items are scheduled for the next board meeting agenda. 
Board members are requested to identify additional action or presentation items they desire to 
be scheduled on the agenda. 

ANTICIPATED AGENDA ITEMS: Fire Chief Employment Contract for Adam House 
Oath of Office & Swearing in of Fire Chief Adam House 

Posted on July 24, 2023 by 4:30 p.m. 

Marni Rittburg, c,cpM 
Clerk of the Board 
** No written report 
•1:E:i Separate Attachment 

DISABILITY INFORMATION: 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this 
meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (916) 859-4305. Notification at least 48 hours prior to 
the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this 
meeting. 



Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
l I 

lfi,;~ 10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200 • Mather, CA 95655 • Phone (916) 859-4300 • Fax (916) 859-3702 

DAN HAVERTY 
Interim Fire Chief 

ACTION SUMMARY MINUTES - REGULAR MEETING 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

CALL TO ORDER 

SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 
Thursday, June 22, 2023 

Held at the following locations: 
10545 Armstrong Avenue - Board Room 

Mather, California 
& 

Remotely Via Zoom 

The meeting was called to order at 6:00 pm by President Clark. Board members present: 
Clark, Costa, Jones, Rice, Sheetz, Webber and Wood. Board members absent: Goold and 
Saylors. Staff present: Interim Chief Haverty, and Board Clerk Marni Rittburg. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

No public comments were received. 

CONSENT ITEMS 

Action: Moved by Wood, seconded by Rice, and carried unanimously by members present 
to adopt the consent calendar as follows: 

1. Action Summary Minutes 
Recommendation: Approve the Action Summary Minutes for the Regular Board 
Meeting of May 25, 2023. 
Action: Approved the Action Summary Minutes 

2. Second Reading and Adoption Amending Medical Aid and Ambulance Transport 
User Fee Ordinance 
Recommendation: Adopt Ordinance 2023-01 updating the Fee Schedule amending 
its Medical Aid and Ambulance Transport User Fees for the District. 
Action: Adopted Ordinance 2023-01. 

3. Preliminary Budget for FY 2023/24 Resolution Special Projects 212S 
Recommendation: Adopt the attached Resolution approving the preliminary 
budget for Special Projects Fund 212S. 
Action: Adopted Resolution 2023-040. 

P6 



4. Agreement for Hazardous Materials Response Teams - Sacramento County 
Recommendation: Authorize the Fire Chief or his designee to execute and administer 
the attached agreement. 
Action: Adopted Resolution 2023-041. 

5. Special Fire Tax - Slough house/Rancho Murieta Area 
Recommendation: Adopt the Resolution authorizing the County Assessor to 
incorporate the $100 per parcel Special Fire Tax. 
Action: Adopted Resolution 2023-042. 

6. FY 2022/23 Grant Fund Budget Reallocation for Mobile Integrated (MIH) 
Recommendation: Adopt Resolution implementing changes to the Mid-year Budget 
to reallocate funds within the Grant Fund. 
Action: Adopted Resolution 2023-043. 

7. Station 50 Dormitory Remodel - RFB 23-05 Award Notification & Project 
Update 
Recommendation: Receive the report 
Action: Report received and filed . 

PRESENTATION ITEMS: 

1. Presentation of Fee Schedule for Operational Permits, Plan Review, New 
Construction Inspections, General Fire and Life Safety Inspections 
(Assistant Chief Law) 
Recommendation: Receive presentation and prepare for public hearing on 7/13/23. 
Chief Financial Officer Dave O'Toole presented the item. 
Action: Presentation received and direction given to get as close as possible to 100% 
cost recovery. 

ACTION ITEMS 

1. MIH Contract with Sacramento County 
(BC Scott Perryman) 
Recommendation: Adopt the Resolution and authorize the Fire Chief or his designee 
to enter into a contract for the services requested by Sacramento County. 
Action: Moved by Wood, seconded by Rice, and carried unanimously by roll call vote 
of members present to adopt Resolution 2023-044 authorizing the Fire Chief or his 
designee to accept the Sacramento County Contract for Health Services and Adopting 
a Budget Amendment to the 2022/23 Midyear Budget For The General Fund 212A. 

2. Nominate one Board Member for Special District Representative, 
Seat No. 7. to Sacramento LAFCo Special District Committee · 
(Director Gay Jones & Board Clerk Marni Rittburg) 
Recommendation: Consider nominating one Board Member to Sacramento LAFCo 
Special District Committee. 

6.22.2023 Board Meeting Action Summary Minutes Page 2 of 8 

P7 



Director Jones reported that there is no action necessary on this item and the Board 
will not be making a nomination since we already have a seat on LAFCO. 

REPORTS 

1. PRESIDENT'S REPORT - (President Clark) 

No Report 

2. FIRE CHIEF'S REPORT - (Interim Chief Haverty) 

1. New Hire 

a. Please join me in welcoming: 
i. Jeffrey Sargent, hired as a Fire Investigator II effective June 12 
ii. Kaitlyn Roberts, hired as an Office Technician in CRRD effective June 12 
iii. Shane Boone, Romeo Cha, Sergio Rodriguez and Noah Wilson, hired as 

Reserve Firefighters effective June 10 

2. Recruitment 

a. HR is accepting applications for: 
i. Career Development Opportunity Day Assignment - Mobile Integrated 

Health Program Firefighter/Paramedic and Paramedic with a final filing 
date of June 29 by 4 PM 

b. Congratulations to the following personnel who successfully completed the 
2023 Battalion Chief examination in the order indicated below. The eligibility list 
will be effective immediately and will end on June 16, 2025. 

6.22.2023 Board Meeting Action Summary Minutes Page 3 of 8 

PB 



1 Joe Aldrich 
2 Rvan Pittman 
3 Parker Wilbourn 
4 Michael Slone 
5 Tom Koscielnv 
6 Brvan DuPertuis 
7 Jeffrey Hickman 
8 Eric Kellenberner 
9 Andrew Whaley 
10 Ryan Manfredi 
11 Aaron Montcmmerv 
12 Jeffrey Taylor 
13 Mark Nunez 
14 Tim Slone 
15 Jason Butler 
16 Jeremy Crawford 
17 Derik Oakes 
18 Jeffrey Malinowski 
19 Steve Harrinoton 

3. As you are aware, we have two Special Board meetings this weekend for the Fire 
Chief interviews at our Headquarters Building. Saturday begins at 8:00 AM and 
Sunday begins at 1 :00 PM. 

4. Miscellaneous 

a. Reframing Organizations: Three sessions are being held in June covering the 
Symbolic Frame. Thank you to CFO O'Toole for co-presenting this section. 

b. June 9 the following two events took place: 
i. The Congressional Briefing and Tour of the Zinfandel Training with 

Congressman Ami Bera. Thank you to President Clalrk, and Directors 
Jones and Webber for your presence. We also were happy to include 
Sheriff Jim Cooper and his staff and Pat Ellis representing PG&E. 

ii. Celebration of life for BC John French. Chief French retired in 1990 from 
the American River Fire District. He began his career with the Arden Fire 
Department. There were over 30 retired firefighters present, including 
Director Rice and his wife, Liz; as well as a Metro Engine Company 
under BC Reed's command. 

OPERATIONS REPORT (Deputy Chief Adam Mitchel~ 

1. VEGETATION MANAGEMENT BURNS 

A. The Illa Collin Preserve at Mather vegetation management burns are complete. The 
burns were conducted over all three shifts, from June 9 to June 16. A total of 355 

6.22.2023 Board Meeting Action Summary Minutes Page 4 of 8 

pg 



acres were treated in collaboration with Sacramento County Parks, Center for Natural 
Lands Management and the Metro Fire Community Wildfire Preparedness Plan. The 
burns were intended to restore the role of fire into the land scape, treat for noxious and 
invasive plants while reducing the threat of wildfire to the community of Mather, and 
resulted in great a great training experience for our members. Thanks to all involved! 

2. CONGRESSMAN BERA VISIT 

A. On Friday, June 9th numerous staff facilitated a visit from Congressman Bera and his 
staff at the Zinfandel Training Center to discuss the history, current use, and future 
plans. Thanks to the Directors that attended the event. Specifically, The Congressman 
is moving forward with supporting a federal ask to develop the EVOC portion of the 
Training Center project. Special thanks to Kyle MacDonald, Erin Castleberry, AC Mike 
Lozano, and B8 Brian Gonsalves for their portions of the presentation and 
coordination of the visit. We also ·welcomed Sheriff Jim Cooper, SSD Captain of 
training Matt Tamayo, and Pat Ellis from PG&E to show the support of our regional 
partners in the project. Although not able to make it that day, I appreciate the support 
from Citrus Heights Police Chief Alex Turcotte for the project as well. The presentation 
was well received, and we will continue to work with the Congressman and his staff 
moving forward. 

3. CAPITAL ASSET INVENTORY PROCESS 

A. Recently, the District Finance Staff completed the capital asset inventory, and 
Operations received an email titled "Capital Asset Inventory, a big thank you!" from ' 
Marie Jones: "With the addition of another finance team (3 teams instead of 2), 
meeting with the Ops team, and getting the word out prior to us coming, this was by far 
the smoothest and quickest inventory we had, and I can say that as I've led every 
capital asset inventory the District has ever done. Normally we use about two weeks to 
complete all counts, and this year we completed it in just 3½ days!" This efficiency 
would not have been possible without the coordination, and I wanted to thank Marie, 
Dave and the whole Finance Team for their work and early communication that 
allowed us to set a new record in getting this complete! Great example of teamwork! 

4. SERVICE DELIVERY UPDATE 

A. Happy to report that we held a joint planning meeting this week on Tuesday, June 20th 

and continue to make progress towards implementation of the FDM to MMP 
incremental transition plan. Currently, the target date for deployment of phase 1, four 
FDMs to MMPs is Sunday, September 3rd. Thanks to all involved in keeping this 
project moving forward to support service delivery to the community and our members. 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT (Deputy Chief Ty Bailey) 

Community Relations Division 

• Working with CRRD on the fireworks project 

6.22.2023 Board Meeting Action Summary Minutes Page 5 of 8 

P10 



• Helping distribute the fireworks safety messages by: 
o Engine decals throughout the District 
o TNT Fireworks Booth Safety Message 

• 400 Flyers - 2 flyers will be stapled to 154 TNT booths throughout the 
District. 

o Video collaboration 
■ Citrus Heights PD, Rancho Cordova PD, and Sac Sheriff 
• Metro Fire Fireworks Safety Video 

o Media segments 
• PIO has these planned as we get closer to the holiday weekend 

o Fireworks task force 
• Education and enforcement 

• Request to distribute our fireworks safety message was sent to 
o Citrus Heights City Counsel 
o San Juan Unified School District Communications Division 
o Twin Rivers USO 
o Director of Communications 
o City of Rancho Cordova 
o City of Citrus Heights 
o Rancho Murrieta CSD 
o Sacramento Office of Education Communications Division 
o Carmichael Chamber of Commerce 
o North Highlands Community Services District 
o Fair Oaks Recreation & Park District 
o 80 Watt District 
o Local eNews and Physical Newspapers 
o Safe Kids Coordinator 
o Metro Fire Social Media / Nextdoor - every Thursday or Friday beginning 6/15 

• Schools contacted directly 

FINANCE 

o San Juan Unified School District 
• 5 Schools 

o Sacramento City Unified School District 
• 8 Schools 

• Finance completed its biannual capital asset inventory. This inventory required visiting every 
facility and operational apparatus and determining that capital assets were still there and 
functional. The Finance team received excellent support from all divisions: a process that 
normally takes two weeks was completed in four days. 

6.22.2023 Board Meeting Action Summary Minutes Page 6 of 8 

P11 



HUMAN RESOURCES 
• 1 Logistic Technician starts on 6/27 /23 
• 1 Office Technician in backgrounds 
• Administrative Specialist Interviews 6/22/23 
• 2023 Captain Eligibility list - 22 Candidates. List expires 6/5/25 
• 2023 BC Eligibility list - 19 Candidates. List expires 6/16/25 

BACKGROUNDS 
• MMP 23-1 Academy scheduled to start on July 10, 2023 

o 14 Paramedics 
o 10 EMTs (All are not yet confirmed) 

• MMP 23-2 Background held on June 13, 2023 
o 7 Paramedics 

SUPPORT SERVICES REPORT (Deputy Chief Tyler Wagaman) 

AC Law provided a report for DC Wagaman and reported that Krista Aney successfully 
completed POST training on June 21st, and she will be filling for the Arson Investigator 
position on C-shift. Chief Law reported that she attended the Board of Supervisors meeting 
to provide a Fireworks presentation. AC Law also reported that she met with Human 
Resources to work through staffing challenges in the investigative unit. 

3. SMFD - FIREFIGHTERS LOCAL 522 REPORT (Vice President Matt Cole) 

VP Matt Cole congratulated the 19 personnel who successfully passed the 2023 Battalion 
Chief examination. We have great people joining and moving up in the District. 

4. COMMITTEE AND DELEGATE REPORTS 
All Committee Meetings will be held at the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District Board Room, 
10545 Armstrong Avenue, Mather, California unless othe1wise specified. 

A. Executive Committee - (President Clark) 
Next Meeting: TBD 

No Report. 

B. Communications Center JPA - (D.C. Wagaman) 
Next Meeting: June 13, 2023 at 9:00 AM 

No Report. 

C. Finance and Audit Committee - (Director Wood) 
Next Meeting: July 27, 2023 at 5:30 PM 

Will meet on 7/27/2023, No Report. 

D. Policy Committee - (Director Costa) 
Next Meeting: TBD 

6.22.2023 Board Meeting Action Summary Minutes Page 7 of 8 

P12 



No Report. 

BOARD MEMBER QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 

Director Costa thanked staff for all the hard work and preparation for the 4th of July 
holiday/weekend. 

Director Jones congratulated the 19 personnel who successfully passed the 2023 Battalion 
Chief examination. Director Jones thanked Erin Castleberry for organizing the great visit 
from Congressman Ami Bera. 

Director Sheetz welcomed the new employees and congratulated Krista Aney for successfully 
completed POST training. 

Director Wood gave kudos to Brenda Briggs and the team for a very successful Fire Camp. 
Director Wood thanked Art Hong from IT, Logistics and Board Clerk Marni Rittburg for the 
hard work in planning and set-up of the engine bay at Station 68 so that we could hold the 
Board Meeting here tonight. 

Director Clark wished everyone a safe and sane July 4th holiday weekend. 

To view the video of the meeting, please visit the Metro Fire Website or our YouTube 
channel: 
https ://metrofire. ca. gov /board-meetings 

ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:08 p.m. 

D'Elman Clark, President Ted Wood, Secretary 

Marni Rittburg, CMG, Board Clerk 

6.22.2023 Board Meeting Action Summary Minutes Page 8 of 8 

P13 



l I Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
~Ii~ 10545 Armstrong Ave. Suite 200 • Mather, California 95655. Phone (916) 859-4300 • Fax (916)859-3720 

DAN HAVERTY 
Interim Fire Chief 

DATE: 

TO: 

July 27, 2023 

Board of Directors 

SUBJECT: Purchase of Microsoft Office Licenses 

BACKGROUND 

The District currently utilizes Microsoft Office 2013. Unfortunately the support lifecycle 
for this product has ended, and Microsoft will no longer be able to provide technical 
support for issues, conduct bug fixes, nor perform security fixes for vulnerabilities. 
Because of this and to help mitigate the District's exposure to security vulnerabilities, 
the District will now need to upgrade to a supported version of Microsoft Office. 

DISCUSSION 

Riverside County issued a formal Request for Quote #RIVCO-2020-RFQ-0000048 for 
Countywide Microsoft licenses, products, and services available on Microsoft Enterprise 
Agreement no. 8084445 through an authorized Licensing Solution Provider (LSP). Ten 
LSPs, including Dell Marketing L.P. (Dell), were selected to enter into a master 
agreement which would extend guaranteed pricing for Microsoft products and services 
to other government entities. The District has obtained a quote from Dell for the 
purchase of Office Pro Plus licenses utilizing Riverside County's Master Agreement No. 
8084445 - Contract ID PSA-0001524, as the District is permitted to contract with 
suppliers which have in force a current contract with another governmental agency for 
the same item or service. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Funding for year-one of the license purchase has been included in the 2023-2024 fiscal 
year budget. This contract allows the purchase to be paid across three annual 
payments rather than paying for the licenses in their entirety up-front. 

Provider Product Year1 Year 2 Year3 
3 Year 
Total 

Dell Microsoft Office $71,811.00 $74,704.72 $74,704.72 $221,220.44 
Licenses 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the Board of Director's allow the District to procure the Microsoft 
Office licenses from Dell using the Riverside County's Master Agreement No. 8084445 
- Contract ID PSA-0001524. 

P14 



Submitted by: 

Mathew Roseberry, 
Director of Information Technology 

P15 



Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 

10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200 • Mather, CA 95655 • Phone (916) 859-4300 • Fax (916) 859-3702 

Dan Haverty 
Interim Fire Chief 

DATE: July 27, 2023 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Barbie Law, Assistant Chief-Fire Marshal 

SUBJECT: Final Reading to Adopt Ordinance 2023-02 and Accept the Nexus Study 
to Update the Fee Schedule for Operational Permits, Plan Review, New 
Construction Inspections, General Fire and Life Safety Inspections, and 
Other Miscellaneous Services 

TOPIC 

Conduct the final reading and adopt Ordinance 2023-02, replacing Ordinance 2015-02 
adopted by the Board of Directors on March 01, 2015 as amended with Resolution 2016-
061 on July 01, 2016 updating the Fee Schedule for Operational Permits, Plan Review, 
New Construction Inspections, General Fire and Life Safety Inspections, and Other 
Miscellaneous Services (CRRD Fee Schedule). The effective date of Ordinance 2023-02 
and associated CRRD Fee Schedule would be September 01, 2023, or as soon possible 
thereafter. 

BACKGROUND 

In its 2020 Strategic Plan, the Board directed staff to provide analysis and 
recommendations for all fee-based programs to ensure revenue maintenance. CRRD 
conducted an analysis of the CRRD Fee Schedule and found the District has not revised 
the CRRD fee schedule since July 01, 2016. Additionally, although Ordinance No. 2015-
02 allowed for annual adjustment based on the change in the Federal Bureau of Labor 
Statistics' Consumer Pricing Index, these adjustments were never applied. Since the last 
fee schedule update in 2016, the California Fire Code (CFC) has been revised three 
times. Per the Board directive, the fee schedule should be reviewed accordingly to 
ensure appropriate cost recovery levels for services provided. 

DISCUSSION 

Legal Requirements 
Pursuant to Health & Safety Code Sections 13146.2(b), 13217(b), 13862, 13869, 13871 , 
13874, 17951 and California Government Code Section 6103.7, the District is authorized 
to adopt user and regulatory fees to defray and/or recover the cost of providing specified 
services directly to an individual or business. As such, these fees are intended to reflect 
the internal costs incurred by the District to perform the service or regulatory action. 
Collection of user fees reduces the burden on general District revenues (primarily 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties 

P16 



Page 2 

property taxes) to fund such regulatory services, thus providing the ability to stret_ch 
other resources further for the benefit of the public at-large. 

Fee Update 
NBS Consulting was engaged to assist the District in updating the Community Risk 
Reduction Division's (CRRD) user and regulatory fee program. The goals of the study 
were to (1) determine the cost of providing fire inspection and regulatory (or building plan 
review) services based on analysis of staff time involved in the performance of service
related activities, (2) determine the amount of cost recovery at the current fee levels, and 
the extent to which such services were being subsidized with general revenues, and .(3) 
ensure fees are compliant with legal requirements. The proposed fee schedule update 
and supporting fee study are attached hereto as Exhibits A and B. 

CRRD presented the proposed changes to the CRRD Fee Schedule to the Board of 
Directors as a presentation item at the June 22, 2023 Board of Directors meeting. As 
required by law, the first public hearing occurred on July 13, 2023. In addition to public 
noticing requirements, CRRD sent out notification of the proposed fee schedule changes 
to stakeholders in our Fire Prevention Mobile database via Constant Contact (1 ,030 
contacts). 

Hearing Comments 
One public comment was received in opposition to the increases in the first hearing. 
Ordinance 2023-02 contains the following provision, "The Fire Chief or the designated 
representative may waive applicable fees or a cost when it is determined to be in the 
best interest of the District to do so". This provision has been present in the fee schedule 
in varying forms since the inception of Metro Fire, and there are no changes proposed to 
the District's ability to waive applicable fees. This addresses the concern raised by the 
member of the public. 

During the Director Comments, a question arose regarding the Consumer Price Index 
(CPI) methodology included in Ordinance 2023-02. Staff researched the question and 
consulted General Counsel. The CPI rate used by the District reflects federal and state 
CPI calculations for the closest major metropolitan region in California and no 
Sacramento-specific regional CPI is prepared. Additionally, it was determined that the 
board has already adopted the CPI increase for FY 2023/24. Annual CPI increases are a 
separate matter from the fee adjustment proposal currently before the Board. The next 
CPI increase will be considered by the Board in the spring for the 2024/25 fiscal year. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Currently, CRRD is recovering 45 percent of the total cost of providing its services from 
fees: approximately $2.6 million per year. At the proposed full cost recovery level and 
with no change in demand for services, the District would recover approximately $5. 7 
million per year-a $3.1 million increase. For FY 2024/25 the District anticipates a 
modest revenue increase of approximately $1 .5 million, reflecting implementation timing 
and demand effects. Full fiscal year revenue impacts will be built into FY 2024/25 budget 
estimates. 

Maintaining fees at less than full cost recovery would result in increased use of property 
taxes and other general operating revenues to fund CRRD's services, and reduce 
funding available for other emergency services provided by the District. 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties 

P17 



Page 3 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the following actions b.e taken by the Board: 
1. Hold a final reading to consider updating the CRRD Fee Schedule as supported 

by the fee study. 
2. Upon conclusion of the final reading: 

a. Adopt a resolution accepting the new CRRD Fee Schedule 
b. Remove Ordinance No. 2015-02 and adopt Ordinance 2023-02, an 

Ordinance of the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District Amending Its Fee 
Schedule for Operational Permits, Plan Review, New Construction 
Inspections, General Fire and Llf e Safety Inspections, and Other 
Miscellaneous Services to take effect on September 01, 2023. 

Submitted by: 

~.frw-? . arb1eaw, Assistant Chief-Fire Marshal 

Approved by: 

D.:... )l\,){,:,_,_1--

Dan Haverty, Interim Fire Chief 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counlles ' 

P18 



Ordinance No. 2023-02 

PROPOSED ORDINANCE NO. 2023-02 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE 
DISTRICT AMENDING ITS FEE SCHEDULE FOR OPERATIONAL 
PERMITS, PLAN REVIEW, NEW CONSTRUCTION INSPECTIONS, 
GENERAL FIRE AND LIFE SAFETY INSPECTIONS, AND OTHER 

MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES PROVIDED BY THE DISTRICT 

WHEREAS, the District, pursuant to California Health and Safety Code Sections 
13146.2(b), 13217(b), 13862, 13869, 13871, 13874, 17951 and California Government 
Code Section 6103.7, is authorized to adopt a fee schedule to defray and/or cover the 
cost of providing specified services directly to an individual or business; and 

WHEREAS, the District engaged NBS to review and update the District's user and 
regulatory fees; and 

WHEREAS, NBS has completed the study and have issued their report dated June 13, 
2023, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit "B"; and 

WHEREAS, on January 22, 2015, the District adopted Ordinance 2015-02, an ordinance 
revising the fee schedule for certain operation permits, plan review, new construction 
inspections, general fire and life safety inspections, and other miscellaneous services 
provided by the District directly to an individual or business; and 

WHEREAS, on June 23, 2016 the District approved Resolution 2016-61, a resolution 
approving a consumer price index adjustment to its fee schedule for certain operation 
permits, plan review, new construction inspections, general fire and life safety 
inspections, and other mi_scellaneous services provided by the District directly to an 
individual or business; and 

WHEREAS, budgetary considerations have required that the service fee schedule 
charges be amended to defray and/or cover specified costs for operational permits, plan 
review, new construction inspections, general fire and life safety inspections, and other 
miscellaneous services provided by the District directly to an individual or business in 
order to protect the health and safety of the general public and preserve lives and 
property. It is the intent to provide Fire and Life safety Inspections to all businesses within 
the District on an annual basis or per inspection program guidelines; and 

WHEREAS, it remains the intent of the Disfrict to provide fire and life safety inspections 
to all businesses within the District on an annual basis or per inspections program 
guidelines. 

Page 1 of3 

P19 



Ordinance No. 2023-02 

SECTION 4. Future Fee Increases 

The fees identified in this ordinance shall be adjusted annually, beginning July 1, 2024 
and each July 1st thereafter, by the percentage change in the Consumer Price Index 
(CPI), All Urban Consumers, Not Seasonally Adjusted, for the area of San Francisco
Oakland-Hayward, CA for the 12-month period ending April 30 of the current calendar 
year. 

Approval by the Board of Directors shall be by resolution, adopted at a regularly 
scheduled meeting of the Board prior to the enactment of the increase. 

SECTION 5. Revision of Fee Schedule 

The Board of Directors of the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District may, from time to 
time, revise this fee schedule as a result of changes in operating expenses of the District. 
Such revisions shall be adopted in the form of amendments to this ordinance, after public 
comment at a regularly scheduled meeting of the Board in accordance with Health and 
Safety Code Section 13916. 

First reading of this Ordinance introduced and passed by the Board of Directors of the 
Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District at a regular meeting held on the 13th day of July, 
2023 by the following vote to wit: 

AYES: President Clark, Directors Costa, Goold, Jones, Rice, Saylors, Sheetz, 
Webber, and Wood 

NOES: None 
ABSENT: None 
ABSTAIN: None 

Second reading of this Ordinance adopted by the Board of Directors of the Sacramento 
Metropolitan Fire District at an adjourned regular meeting held on the 27th of July, 2023 
by the following vote to wit: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

ATTEST: 

Marni J. Rittburg, CMC, CPMC 
Clerk of the Board 

SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 

President, Board of Directors 

Page 3 of3 

P20 



Exhibit "A" Attachment 
Ordinance 2023-02 Effective September 01, 2023 

FEE SCHEDULE 
SECTION "A" 

Fire and Life Safety Inspections for Facilities with Increased Hazards 
(Permits to Operate) 

CFC PERMITS TO OPERA TE 1 2 CUURENT FEE SEPT. 01, 2023 
FEE 

105.5.1 1 Additive Manufacturin_g NEW $608.00 
105.5.2 2 Aerosol Products (per 500 lbs.) $469.00 $608.00 
105.5.3 3 Amusement Buildings $469.00 $913.00 
105.5.4 4 Aviation Facilities $938.00 $1,217.00 
105.5.5 6 Carnivals, Fairs, and Special Events $469.00 $913.00 . 

a. Each additional booth, exhibits, $24.00 $30.00 
etc. 

b. Outdoor assembly events NEW $1 ,825.00 
(greater than 1,000 people) 

105.5.6 7 Cellulose Nitrate Film $469.00 $608.00 
105.5.7 8 Combustible Dust Producing Operations $469.00 $608.00 
105.5.8 9 Combustible Fibers $469.00 $608.00 
105.5.9 10 Compressed Gases $469.00 $608.00 

a. Carbon Dioxide Systems NEW $608.00 
105.5.10 11 Covered and Open Mall Buildings $1875.00 $2,433.00 
105.5.1 1 12 Cryogenic Fluids $469.00 $608.00 
105.5.12 13 Cutting and Welding $469.00 $608.00 
105.5.13 14 Dry Cleaning Plants $469.00 $608.00 
105.5.14 15 Energy Storage Systems NEW 1608.00 
105.5.15 16 Exhibits and Trade Shows $469.00 $608.00 
105.5.16 17 Explosives $586.00 $760.00 
105.5.17 18 Fire Hydrants and Valves $469.00 $608.00 
105.5.18 19 Flammable and Combustible Liquids $469.00 $608.00 

a. Use/Operate/Repair Pipeline $586.00 $760.00 
105.5.19 20 Floor Finishing $469.00 $608.00 
105.5.20 21 Fruit and Crop Ripening $469.00 $608.00 
105.5.21 22 Fumigation & Insecticidal Fogging $0.00 $608.00 
105.5.22 23 Hazardous Materials $586.00 $1,217.00 
105.5.23 24 HPM Facilities $586.00 $1,217.00 
105.5.24 25 High Pile Storage $586.00 $760.00 
105.5.25 •26 Hot Work Operations $469.00 $608.00 
105.5.26 27 Industrial Ovens $586.00 $760.00 
105.5.53 28 Lithium Batteries NEW $608.00 
105.5.27 29 Lumber Yards and Woodworking Plants $586.00 $760.00 
105.5.28 30 Liquid or Gas-Fueled Vehicles in $586.00 $760.00 

Assembly 
105.5.30 32 Magnesium $469.00 $608.00 
105.5.31 33 Miscellaneous Combustible Storage $469.00 $608.00 
105.5.32 34 Mobile Fueling of Hydrogen-Fueled NEW $608.00 

Vehicles 
105.5.33 35 Motor Fuel Dispensing_ Facility $469.00 $608.00 
105.5.34 36 Open Burning (Burn Per1I1it) $0.00 $76.00 
105.5.36 38 Open Flames and Candles $0.00 $456.00 

Page 1 of 9 

P21 



Exhibit "A" Attachment 
Ordinance 2023-02 Effective September 01, 2023 

CFC PERMITS TO OPERATE 
CURRENT FEE SEPT. 01, 2023 

FEE 

105.5.37 39 Organic Coatings $586.00 $760.00 
105.5.40 40 Plant Extraction Systems NEW $913.00 
105.5.39 41 Places of_ Assembly 

a. 50-99 $234.00 $456.00 
b. 100-299 $373.00 $760.00 
C. 300 or more $586.00 $913.00 

105.5.41 42 Private Hydrants $469.00 $608.00 
105.5.42 43 Pyrotechnic Special Effects Material 

a. Fireworks Aerial Display 
1. 60 or less shells $1,406.00 $1,825.00 
2. 61 to 120 shells $1,641.00 $3,042.00 
3. 121 to 180 shells $1,875.00 $3,042.00 
4 . 181 to 240 shells $2,108.00 $3,042.00 
5. 241 or more shells $2,343.00 $3,042.00 

b. Fireworks Retail Stand 
$373.00 $456.00 

(Minimum) {Minimum) 
C. Fireworks Set Pieces 

1. With Aerial Display $234.00 $304.00 
2. Without Aerial Display $469.00 $913.00 

d. Fireworks - special effects $469.00 $608.00 
Pyrotechnic effects used in (Minimum) (Minimum) 
motion picture, theatrical and 
group entertainment (charged 
for actual hours spent) 
1. Each additional hour $234.00 $304.00 

105.5.43 44 Pyroxylin Plastics $469.00 $608.00 
105.5.44 45 Refrigeration Equipment $469.00 $608.00 
105.5.45 46 Repair Garages and Motor Fuel $469.00 $608.00 

Dispensing 
105.5.46 47 Rooftop Heliports $469.00 $608.00 
105.5.47 48 Spraying or Dipping $469.00 $608.00 
105.5.48 49 Storage of Scrap Tires and Tire $586.00 $760.00 

Byproducts 
105.5.49 50 Temporary Membrane Structures and 

Tents 3 

a. 400-1 ,499 sq. ft. $469.00 $760.00 
b. 1,500 - 2,999 sq. ft. $586.00 $913.00 
C. 3,000 - 5,999 sq. ft. $702.00 $1,065.00 
d. 6,000 sq. ft. and above $819.00 $1,217.00 

105.5.50 51 Tire-Rebuilding Plants $586.00 $760.00 
105.5.51 52 Waste Handling $586.00 $760.00 
105.5.52 53 Wood Products $469.00 $760.00 

53 Occupancies with 2 or more permits, $59.00 $76.00 
Each Additional Permit 2 

Page 2 of 9 

P22 



Exhibit "A" Attachment 
Ordinance 2023-02 Effective September 01, 2023 

FEE SCHEDULE 
SECTION "B" 

Occupancy Inspections 

INSPECTIONS 1 CURRENT FEE SEPT. 01, 2023 
FEE 

1 Commercial Day Care 
a. 7-49 persons $234.00 $608.00 
b. 50-149 persons $469.00 $913.00 
C. 150 or more $586.00 $1,369.00 

2 Educational (Public & Private) 
a. . E - 1-99 students $234.00 $913.00 
b. E - 100-199 students $469.00 $1,217.00 
C. E - 200-499 students $586.00 $1 ,521 .00 
d. E - 500+ students NEW $1 ,825.00 
e. Public School 2 No Charge See Footnote 

3 
1
r Institutional 

a. Hospitals $1,875.00 $3,954.00 
4 Pre-Inspection (R-2.1, R-3.1 and R-4 Facilities - H&S 

132535) 
a. Facilities with 25 or less persons $234.00 $608.00 
b. Facilities with 26 or more persons $469.00 $913.00 

5 High Rise Inspections 
a. B- 7 to 10 stories $1,523.00 $1,977.00 
b. B - 11 or more stories $1,875.00 $2,433.00 

6 R esidential Apartments 
a. Up to 4 Units 1 $117.00 $456.00 
b. 5-25 Units $352.00 $608.00 
C. 26-100 Units $526.00 $913.00 
d. 101-300 Units $579.00 $1,217.00 
e. 301 + Units $826.00 $1,521.00 

7 Residential Care Facilities/Skilled Nursing Facilities Initial 
Fire Clearance/Annual Inspection 

a. 7-25 Units $352.00 $913.00 
b. 26-100 Units $527.00 $1,217.00 
C. 101-300 Units $703.00 $1,521.00 
d. 301 or More Units $878.00 $1,825.00 

8 Annual Inspection Hotel/Motel 
a. 7-25 Units $352.00 $760.00 
b. 26-100 Units $527.00 $913.00 
C. 101-300 Units $703.00 $1,217.00 
d. 301 or More Units $878.00 $1,521.00 

9 Commercial Business Inspections 4 

a. 0-2000 sq. ft. $117.00 $456.00 
b. 2,001-5,000 sq. ft. $234.00 $684.00 
C. 5,001-10,000 sq. ft. $352.00 $913.00 

-· d. 10,001 - 20,000 sq. ft. $469.00 $1,141.00 
e. 20,001 - 40,000 sq. ft. $586.00 $1,369.00 
f. 40,001- 80,000 sq. ft. $703.00 $1 ,597.00 
g. 80,001 - 120,000 SQ. ft. $820.00 $1,825.00 

Page 3 of 9 

P23 



Exhibit "A" Attachment 
Ordinance 2023-02 Effective September 01, 2023 

I; h. 120,001 - 150,001 sq. ft. $938.00 
CURRENT 

FEE 

$2,053.00 I 
INSPECTIONS FEE SEPT. 01, 2023 

i. 150,001 - 20Q,000 sq. ft. 
i. 200,001 - 500,000 sq. ft. 
k. 500,001 sq. ft. or greater 

10 Storage Facilities 
a. Without Interior Corridors 
b. With Interior Corridors 

11 2+ Permits, each additional permit after first permit 2 

Notes 

$1 ,055.00 
NEW 
NEW 

$528.00 
$786.00 

$73.00 

$2,281 .00 
$3,042.00 
$3,954.00 

$913.00 
$1,217.00 

$76.00 

(1) Permit Fees include an initial inspection and one re-inspection. Failure to comply 
with inspection program or second re-inspection will result in additional 
inspection fee per Section D, item 2 of this fee schedule. 

(2) Occupancies with more than two or more permits shown on this list above will 
result in a charge using the highest amount shown, followed by additional permits 
at¼ of hourly rate. 

(3) Fee is assessed based on cumulative permittable tent square footage at a single 
site. 

(4) Fee is assessed based on cumulative square footage of all buildings under a 
single owner. 

Page 4 of9 

P24 



Exhibit "A" Attachment 
Ordinance 2023-02 Effective September 01, 2023 

FEE SCHEDULE 
SECTION "C" 

Plan Review/ Construction Inspections 

PLAN REVIEW CURRENT FEE SEPT. 01, 2023 
FEE 

1 Above Ground Tank Installation, $655 $913.00 
Flammable/Combustible Liquids 
Compressed Gases (1 st Tank) 

a. Additional Tank (Each) $262.00 $532.00 

2 Administration Charge for Resubmittals, $262.00 $456.00 
Upon 2nd or Subsequent Revision (1 st Hour) 1 

a. Additional Hours (Per Hour) $262.00 $304.00 

3 After Hours 
a. Plan Review 

1. First 2 hours $285.00 $667.00 
2. Each additional hour $524.00 $333.00 

b. Inspection 
1. First 2 hours $285.00 $667.00 
2. Each additional hour (per hour) $524.00 $333.00 

4 Basic Building Review 
a. Minor Plan Review, Over the Counter 2 $131 .00 $152.00 
b. Basic Construction Fee 2 $262.00 $913.00 
C. Commercial Uses (New Construction) 

1. 0,001 - 10,000 sq. ft. (per project) $856.00 $1,217.00 
2. 10,001 - 20,000 sq. ft. (per project) $1 ,005.00 $1,521.00 
3. 20,001 - 50,000 sq. ft. (per project) $1,351.00 $2,1 29.00 
4. > 50,001 sq. ft. (scaled per sq. ft.) 3 $0.01 $0.04 

d. Commercial Residential and 
Multifamily Residential Uses (New Building) 
1. 0 - 10,000 sq. ft. (per project) $786.00 $1,369.00 

2. 10,001 - 20,000 sq. ft. (per project) $1,087.00 $1,673.00 
3. 20,001 - 50,000 sq. ft. (per project) $1,663.00 $2,129.00 
4 . > 50,001 sq. ft. (scaled per sq. ft.) 3 $0.02 $0.04 

e. Commercial Storage/Warehouse (New Building) 
1. O - 50,000 sq. ft. (per project) $856.00 $1 ,369.00 
2. 50,001 - 200,000 sq. ft. (per project) $1 ,285.00 $2,129.00 
3. >200,001 sq. ft. (scaled per sq. ft.) 3 $0.01 $0.01 

f. Commercial Uses (Tenant Improvement) 
1. 0,001 - 10,000 sq. ft. (per project) $625.00 $1,217.00 
2. 10,001 - 20,000 sq. ft. (per project) $1,142.00 $1,521 .00 
3. 20,001 - 50,000 sq. ft. (per project) $1 ,570.00 $1 ,977.00 
4. >50,001 sq. ft. (scaled per sq. ft.) 3 $0.02 $0.04 

g. High Piled Storage Rack (Tenant Improvement) 
1. 0,001 - 10,000 sq. ft. (per project) $714.00 $1 ,065.00 
2. 10,001 - 20,000 sq. ft. (per project) $999.00 $1,369.00 
3. 20,001 - 50,000 sq. ft. (per project) $1 ,285.00 $1,673.00 
4. >50,001 sq. ft . (scaled per sq. ft.) 3 $0.02 $0.03 

5 Cell Tower (Outside Roof, Pole, etc.)(Per Project) $393.00 $760.00 

Page 5 of9 

P25 



Exhibit "A" Attachment 
Ordinance 2023-02 Effective September 01, 2023 

6 I Certificate of Release (Each) 
PLAN REVIEW 

7 Clean Agent Suppression System or Equal 
(Per Project) 

8 Compressed Gas System 
a. CO2 beverage dispensing 
b. Medical Gas 

9 Cryogenic Fluids (per project) 
10 Design Review/Consultation 

a. In Office (per project first hour) 
1. Additional hours (per hour) 

b. Out of Office (first 2 hours) 
1 . Additional hours (per hour) 

c. Plan design review (first hour) 
1. Additional hours (per hour) 

11 -Emergency Responder Radio Coverage (ERCC) 
12 Energy Storage System (ESS) (Per Project) 

a. Residential 
1. ESS Master Plan Subdivision Homes 
2. ESS - Production Homes 

b. Commercial 
13 Enhanced Vapor Recovery System (per project) 
14 Evacuation Plan Review (Per Project) 
15 Fire Alarm System (Per Project) 

a. 1 - 25 devices 
b. 26 - 50 devices 
c. 51 -100 devices 
d. > 100 devices 
e. Sprinkler system supervision & Alarm 
f. Communication Upgrade 

16 Fire Flow/Hydrant Test 
17 Fire Sprinkler System Commercial (New Installation) 

(Per Project) 
a. 1-99 Sprinklers 
b. 100-199 Sprinklers 
c. 200 or More Sprinklers 

18 ~Fire-Sprinkler System Commercial (T.I.) 
(Per Project) 

a. 1-99 Sprinklers 
b. 100-199 Sprinklers 
c. 200 or More Sprinklers 

19 Flammable & Combustible Liquids (per project) 
20 Fuel Cell Power Systems (per project) 
21 Gas Detection Systems (per Rroject) 
22 Hazardous Materials 

a. Hazardous Materials Dispense/Use 
1. 1-5 chemicals (per project) 
2. Each additional 5 chemicals 

Page 6 of 9 

$393.00 
CURRENT 

FEE 

$655.00 

[ $655.00 
$524.00 

NEW 

$131.00 
$262.00 
$524.00 
$262.00 

NEW 
NEW 
NEW 

NEW 
NEW 
NEW 
NEW 
NEW 

$524.00 

$560.00 
$625.00 
$740.00 
$884.00 
$262.00 
$262.00 
$524.00 

$524.00 
$786.00 

$1,310.00 

$262.00 
$560.00 
$668.00 

NEW 
NEW 
NEW 

NEW 
NEW 

$913.00 
FEE SEPT. 01, 2023 

$1 ,369.00 

$913.00 
$1,369.00 

$916 

$304.00 
$304.00 
$608.00 
$304.00 
$304.00 
$304.00 
$608.00 

$913.00 
$456.00 
$304.00 

$2,281.00 
$608.00 

$1,217.00 

$1,217.00 
$1,673.00 
$2,433.00 
$3,954.00 
$1,065.00 
$1,065.00 
$608.00 

$2,738.00 
$3,346.00 
$4,259.00 

$1,065.00 
$1,445.00 
$1 ,825.00 
$1,217.00 
$2,281.00 
$913.00 

$1,521.00 
$1,521.00 

P26 



Exhibit "A" Attachment 
Ordinance 2023-02 Effective September 01, 2023 

PLAN REVIEW CURRENT FEE SEPT. 01, 2023 
FEE 

b. Hazardous Materials Storage 
1. 1-5 chemicals NEW $1,521.00 
2. Each additional 5 chemicals NEW $1,521.00 

23 Haunted House NEW $913.00 

24 '; Hood & Duct Fire Suppression System (Per System) $524.00 $1,217.00 

25 Industrial Oven NEW $913.00 

26 Kiosk/Booth/Special Concessions in Mall (temporary) NEW $456.00 

27 LPG Tank Installation - Commercial $428.00 $760.00 

28 -LPG Tank Installation - Residential $393.00 $760.00 

29 Mapping Fee (i.e. New Subdivision/Site Plans) 
a. Electronic Format 

1. 1-25 Lots (Per Project) $285.00 $304.00 

2. 26-100 (Lots) $524.00 $608.00 
3. 101 or More Lots (Per Project) $524.00 $913.00 

30 ' Master Plan Sprinkler Production Homes $655.00 $760.00 

31 Motor Vehicle Repair Rooms and Booths (Per Project) NEW $913.00 

32 Plant Extraction (Per Project) NEW $1,369.00 

33 Residential Sprinkler System (Non-Production) $655.00 $1,521 .00 

34 Residential Sprinkler System (T.I} $1,065.00 

35 Satellite Television Letter $262.00 $304.00 

36 Site Plan Review (Per Project) 
a. Perimeter Fencing/Gates $524.00 $1,065.00 

b. Civil lmJ?rovement $524.00 $1,217.00 

37 Smoke Control or Exhaust Systems (Per Project) $524.00 $2,738.00 

38 Solar Panel (Per Project) 
a. New Panels on Residential $524.00 $760.00 

b. Commercial $524.00 $913.00 

39 Special Event _Structures NEW $913.00 

40 Spray Booths (Per Project) $524.00 $913.00 

41 Spraying & Dipping NEW $1 ,217.00 

42 Sprinkler System Subdivision Production $524.00 $913.00 

43 _§ taQdpipe Systems NEW $1,521 .00 

44 Stationary Fire Pump $1 ,572.00 $1 ,521 .00 

45 Temporary Building Use (Per Project) $524.00 $913.00 

46 Temporary Sales Trailer (Per Project) NEW $913.00 

47 Underground Fire Supply Line (1 st 3 Hydrants/Risers) $524.00 $1,673.00 

(Per Project) 
a. Each additional 3 hydrants $131 .00 $760.00 

48 Will Serve Letter Processing $262.00 $304.00 

Notes: 
(1) Fee applies for additional or incomplete submittals beyond first submittal and one 

re-check included in initial plan review fee. ' 
(2) A minor plan is deemed appropriate on a case by case basis, for minor scopes of 

work as determined by the Fire Marshal. 
(3) Fee structure is set so that "scaled per sq. ft." project fees should be implemented 

as follows: per project fee from previous threshold + (remaining sq. ft. x per sq. ft. 
cost multiplier). 

Page 7 of 9 

P27 



Exhibit "A" Attachment 
Ordinance 2023-02 Effective September 01, 2023 

FEE SCHEDULE 
Miscellaneous 

MISCELLANEOUS 1 CURRENT FEE SEPT. 01, 
FEE 2023 

1 · Administration Charges (i.e. Weed Abatement)(Per ½ $147.00 $113.00 
Hour) 

2 Additional Inspection/Re-inspection (Per½ Hour) $373.00 $152.00 
(Minimum) 

3 Appeals 2 $586.00 $1,217.00 
4 Copies of Reports, Photographs, etc. $26.00 

(See Public Records Request Policy) (plus $0.50/page 
or actual cost to 

reproduce a 
$182.00/hour) 

5 District Apparatus Emergency Response/Standby 4 Actual Cost Actual Cost 

6 Commercial False Alarm Cost Recovery 3 

a. Processing and Inspection Required $292.00 $456.00 
(Per Response) 

b. Suppression Unit Response Cost (Per Hour) 4 $330.00 Actual Cost 
C. Inspection Follow Up (after initial correction notice) $124.00 $152.00 

(per½ hour) 
7 Investigation Fee - Fire Investigation Cost Recovery (First $373.00 $349.00 

Hour) (Minimum) 
a. Each Additional Hour $182.00 $233.00 

8 Investigation Fee - Complaints (First Hour) 1- $373:00 1 $491 .00 
a. Each Additional Hour NEW $327.00 

9 Monitoring Required Evacuation Drill 4 Actual Cost Actual Cost 
10 Negligently Caused Fire Emergency 4 Actual Cost Actual Cost l 11 Rese·arch of District Records (Per ½ Hour) $147.00 $152.00 

(plus copy charge of $1.00 for first page, plus $0.10/page r 
thereafter) 

12 Responses Patient Assistance Request from "For Profit" $330.00 Actual Cost 
Care Facilities 4 

12 Standby Personnel or Safety Officer 4 Actual Cost Actual Cost 
13 Technical Report/Alternative Material or Method $586.00 $608.00 

Processing (2 Hour Minimum) 
15 Lost Fire Permit Card $147.00 $304.00 
16 Special Inspection Requests (Not Otherwise Specified in $469.00 $608.00 

Fee Schedule) 
17 Credit Card Processing Fee 4 NEW Actual Cost 
18 Cost Recovery Based on Actual Time (per hour) 

a. Fire Investigation {"\ $224.00 $233.00 
b. Weed Abatement $129.00 $226.00 
C. Code Complaint NEW $327.00 

I! d. Inspection&· Permit Services $292.00 $304.00 
e. Suooression 4 $330.00 Actual Cost 

Notes: 
(1) All fees shown in the Miscellaneous Section of the fee schedule are "minimum" 

amounts. Service required in excess of the minimum will be charged at adopted 
hourly rate. 

Page 8 of 9 

P28 



Exhibit "A" Attachment 
Orqinance 2023-02 Effective September 01 , 2023 

(2) Whenever the Fire Chief disapproves ari application, or refused to grant a permit 
applied for, or when it is claimed that the provisions of the Code do no apply, or 
that the true intent and meaning of the Code have been misconstrued or wrongly 
interpreted with regard to any part of Title 17 .04 of the Sacramento County Code 
(California Fire Code), the applicant may appeal the decision to the District's 
Board of Directors within 20 calendar days. The decision of the District's Board of 
Directors is final. The fee is nonrefundable unless appeal is granted and shall 
accompany the appeal documentation. 

(3) Costs established through this study is a per response cost. Please refer to 
District's false alarm policy for interpretation of these amounts into penalties for 
false alarms. · 

(4) Actual cost means the actual time and cost for service will be charged as deemed 
appropriate by the Fire Marshal or Finance Division. 

Page 9 of 9 

P29 



SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN 
FIRE DISTRICT 
COMMUNITY RISK REDUC110N DIVISION 

Final Report for: 

User Fee Study Update 

June 13, 2023 

Prepared by: 

helping communltlH 
fund tomorrow 

nbsgov.com 

Corporate Headquarters 
32605 Temecula Parkway, Suite 100 

Temecula, CA 92592 
Toll free: 800.676. 7516 

P30 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

1. Executive Summary ........................................................................................................ 1 

1.1 Findings .. .... ..... ....... ............... ................... ...... ... .......................................... .............. 1 

1.2 Report Format ........................................................................................................... 2 

Z, Introduction and Fundamentals ................................................................................. ..... 3 

2.1 Scope of Study ................ .................... .. ..... ..... ...... ..... ............... .. .. ............................. 3 

2.2 Methods of Analysis ... ... ................ ... ................. ........................ ...................... .......... 3 

3, Community Risk Reduction Division ................................................................................ 9 

3.1 Cost of Service Analysis ...................... .............. ............................... ...................... .... 9 

3.2 Fee Establishment ....... ... ........................ .......................... ... ................... ... ........... ... 10 

3.3 Cost Recovery Evaluation .... ... .. ........ .. ............. ....... ................................................. 11 

3.4 Comparison Survey ................ ... .......... ......... ... .... .. ..... .................. ........... ................. 12 

4. Conclusion .............................................. ....... .... ................................. .......................... 13 

Appendices 

Cost of Service Analysis {Fee Tables) 
Comparative Fee Survey 

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
User Fee St udy Update 

.Appendix A 
Appendix B 

P31 



1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

NBS performed a User Fee Study Update (Study) for the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 

Community Risk Reduction Division (District and/or CRRD). The purpose of this report is to present the 

findings and recommendations of the various fee analyses performed as part of the Study and provide the 

District with the informat ion needed to update and establish user and regulatory fees for service. 

Throughout the process, the Study afforded much effort to ensure that not only are the fees and charges 

reasonable and equitable, but that they also meet industry standards and uphold the statutory 

requirements of the State of California. 

California cities, counties, and special districts may impose user and regulatory fees for services and 

activities they provide through provisions set forth in the State Constitution, Article XIII C § 1. Under this 

legal framework, a fee may not exceed the reasonable cost of providing the service or performing the 

activity. For a fee to qualify as such, it must relate to a service or activity performed at the request of an 

individual or entity upon which the fee is imposed, or their actions specifically cause the local government 

agency to perform additiona l activities. In this instance, the service or underlying action causing the local 

agency to perform the service is either discretionary and/or is subject to regulation. As a discretionary 

service or regulatory activity, the user fees and regulatory fees considered in this Study fall outside of t he 

definition and statutory requirement to impose general taxes, specia l taxes, and fees as a result of 

property ownership. 

The District's main re_ason for conducting this Study was twofold: (1) first, to ensure that existing fees do 

not exceed the costs of service, and (2) second, to provide an opportunity for the Board of Directors to re

align fee amounts with localized cost recovery policies. 

1.1 Findings 

This Study examined user and regulatory fees managed by the District's Community Risk Reduction 

Division. The Study identified an estimated $5.7 mil lion in eligible costs for recovery from fees for service 

compared to approximately $2.6 million the District is currently col lecting each year from fees. The 

following table provides a summary of the Study's results: 

Table 1. Report Summary 

Annual Estimated Annual Estimated Annual Cost Existing Cost 

Fee Category Revenues at Revenues at Full Recovery Recovery 

Current Fee Cost Recovery Surplus/ Deficit Percentage 

Permits to Operate and Occupancy Inspections $ 809,217 $ 1,863,637 $ (1,054,420) 43% 

Development Plan Reivew and Inspection $ 1,743,621 $ 3,849,292 $ (2,105,672) 45% 

Miscellaneous $ 12,433 $ 15,209 $ {2,776) 82% 

Total $ 2,565,271 $ 5,728,139 $ (3,162,868) 45% 

As shown in Table 1 above, the District is recovering approximately 45% of the costs associated with 

providing fee-related services. Should the Board adopt fees at 100% of the full cost recovery amounts 

determined by this Study, an additional $3.2 million in costs could be recovered. 

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
User Fee Study Update 1 

P32 



However, Section 2.2.3 later explains, there may be other local policy considerations that support 

adopting fees at less than the calculated full cost recovery amount. Since this element of the Study is 

subjective, NBS provided the maximum potential of fee amounts at 100% full cost recovery for the District 

to consider. Once the Board of Directors has reviewed and evaluated the results of the Study, the District 

can set fees at appropriate cost recovery levels according to local policy goals and considerations. 

1.2 Report Format 

This report documents the analytical methods and data sources used in the Study, presents findings 

regarding current levels of cost recovery achieved from user and regulatory fees, discusses recommended 

fee amounts, and provides a comparative survey of fees to neighboring agencies for similar services. The 

report is organized into the following sections: 

o Section 2 - Outlines the general framework, approach, and methodology of the Fee Study. 

• Section 3 - Discusses the results of the cost of service analysis performed for CRRD. The 

analysis includes: (1) fully burdened hourly rate(s); (2) calculation of the costs of providing 

s·ervice; and, (3) the cost recovery performance of each fee category. 

• Section 4 - Presents the conclusions of the analysis provided in the preceding sections. 

• Appendices to this report - Include additional details of the analysis performed and a 

comparison of the fees imposed by neighboring agencies for similar services. 

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
User Fee Study Update 2 

P33 



2. INTRODUCTION AND FUNDAMENTALS 

2.1 Scope of Study 

The following is a summary of the fees eva luated during the Study: 

• Permits to Operate/ Occupancy Inspections 

• Development Plan Review and Inspection 

• . Miscellaneous 

The fees examined in this report specifically exclude development impact fees, utility rates, and any 

special t ax assessments which fa ll under a different set of statutory and procedural requirements from 

the body of user and regulatory fees analyzed in this Study. The Study also excludes facility and 

equipment rental rates, as well as most fines and penalties imposed by the District for violations of its 

requirements or codes.1 

2.2 Methods of Analysis 

Three phases of analysis were completed for the District: 

Cost of 
Service 
Analysis 

2.2.1 COST OF SERVICE ANALYSIS 

This cost of service analysis is a quantitative effort that compiles the full cost of providing governmental 

services and activities. There are two primary types of costs considered: direct and indirect costs. Direct 

costs are those that specifically relate to an activity or service, including the real-time provision of the 

service. Indirect costs are those that support the provision of services in general but cannot be directly or 

easily assigned to a singular activity or service. 

Components of the full cost of service include direct labor costs, indirect labor costs, specific direct non

labor cost s where applicable, allocated non-labor costs, and allocated organization-wide overhead. 

Definitions of these cost components are as follows: 

• Direct Labor costs - Salary, wages and benefit s expenses for District personnel specifically 
involved in the provision of services and activities to the public. 

• Indirect labor costs - Personnel expenses supporting the provision of services and activities. 
This can include line supervision and division management, administrative support within a 
division, and staff involved in technical activities related to the direct services provided to the 

public. · 

1 According to the California Constitution Article XIII C § 1 (e) (4) and (5), the District is not limited t o the costs of service when 

charging for entrance to or use of government property, or when imposing fines and penalties. 

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire Dist rict 
User Fee Study Update 3 

P34 



• Specific direct non-labor costs -When applicable, discrete expenses incurred by the District 
due to a specific service or activity performed, such as contractor costs, third-party charges, 

and very specific materials used in the service or activity. 

• Allocated non-labor costs - Expenses other than labor involved in the provision of services. 
In most cases, these costs are allocated across all services provided by the Division, rather 

than directly assigned to fee categories. 

• Allocated indirect organization-wide overhead - These are expenses, both labor and non
labor, related to agency-wide support services. Support services include general 
administrative services such as Director's Chief's, Finance, Human Resources, etc. The amount 
of costs attributable to CRRD were sourced from a separate overhead Cost Allocation Plan, 

created by NBS. 

All cost components in this Study use annual (or annualized) figures, representing a twelve-month cycle of 

expenses incurred by the Division in the provision of all services and activities District-wide. 

Nearly all the fees reviewed in this Study require specific actions on the part of District staff to provide the 

service or conduct the activity. Since labor is the primary underlying factor in these activities, the Study 

expresses the full cost of service as a fully burdened cost per labor hour. NBS calculated a composite, fully 

burdened, hourly rate for CRRD. This rate serves as the basis for further quantifying the average full cost 

of providing individual services and activities. Determining the fully burdened labor rate requires two data 

sets: (1) the full costs of service, and (2) the number of staff hours available. to perform those services. 

NBS derived the hours available based on the complete list of all CRRD employees and/or available service 

hours of its contracted professionals (where applicable). 

The District supplied NBS with the total number of paid labor hours for each employee involved in the 

delivery of services included in this Study. These available hours represent the amount of productive time 

available to provide both fee-recoverable and non-fee recoverable services and activities. Available labor 

hours divided into the annual full costs of service equal the composite, fully burdened, labor rate. Some 

agencies may also use the resulting rates for purposes other than setting fees, such as calculating the full 

cost of general services or structuring a cost recovery agreement with another agency or third party. 

NBS also assisted the District in estimating the staff time for the services and activities listed in the 

District's fee schedule. Time tracking records can prove useful in identifying time spent providing general 

categories of service, however, the District does not systematically track the service time of activities for 

all individual fee-level services provided. Therefore, NBS also relied on interviews and questionnaires to 

develop the necessary data sets of estimated labor time. In many cases, the District provided estimates of 

the average amount of time (in minutes and hours) it took to complete a typical service or activity 

considered on a per-occurrence basis. 

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
User Fee Study Update 4 

P35 



It should be noted that the development of these time estimates was not a one-step process but required 

careful review by both NBS and the District to assess the reasonableness of such estimates. Based on the 

results of this review, the District reconsidered its time estimates until all parties were comfortable that 

the fee models reasonably reflected the average service level provided by the District. Finally, the fully 

burdened labor rate(s) calculated in earlier steps were applied at the individual fee level time estimates, 

yielding an average total cost of providing each fee for service or activity. The graphic below provides a 

visual representation of the steps discussed in this section. 

Step 1: 
Calculate 

Fully 
Burdened 

Hourly 
Rate 

Step 2: 
Cost of 
Service 
Analysis 

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
User Fee Study Update 

--
Maximum 
(100% Cost 
Recovery) 

Fee 
Amount 

5 

P36 



2.2.2 FEE ESTABLISHMENT 

The fee establishment process includes a range of considerations, including t he following: 

• Addition to and deletion of fees - The Study provided the District with the opportunity to 

propose additions and deletions to their current fee schedules, as well as re-name, re

organize, and clarify which fees were to be imposed. Many of these fee revisions allowed for 

better adherence to current practices, as well as the improvement in the calculation, 

application, and collection of the fees owed by an individual. Some additions to the fee 

schedule were simply the identification of existing services or activities performed by District 

staff for which no fee is current ly charged. 

• Revision to the structure of fees - In most cases, the focus was to re-a lign the fee amount to 

match the costs of service and leave the current structure of fees unchanged. However, in 

several cases, fee categories and fee names had to be simplified or re-structured to increase 

the likelihood of full cost recovery or to enhance the fairness of how the fee is applied to the 

various types of fee payers. 

" Documentation of the tools used to calculate special cost recovery- The District's fee 

schedule should include the list of fully burdened rates developed by the Study. Documenting 

these rates in the fee schedule provides an opportunity for the Board of Directors to approve 

rates for cost recovery under a "time and materials" approach. It also provides clear 

publication of those rates so that all fee payers can readily reference the basis of any fee 

amounts. The fee schedule should provide language that supports special forms of cost 

recovery for activities and services not included in t he adopted master fee schedule. In these 

ra re instances, published rates are used to estimate a flat fee or bill on an hourly basis. 

2.2.3 COST RECOVERY EVALUATION 

The NBS fee model compares the existing fee for each service or activity to the average total cost of 

service quant ified through this analysis. Here are t he possible outcomes of the fee ana lysis: 

o Cost recovery rate of 0% - This signifies that t here is currently no current recovery of costs 

from fee revenues (or insufficient information available for evaluation). 

• Cost recovery rate of 100% - This means that the fee currently recovers the full cost of 

service. 

• Cost recovery rate between 0% and 100% - This indicates partial recovery of the full cost of 

service through fees. 

o Cost recovery rate greater than 100% - This means that the fee exceeds the full cost of 

service. User fees and regulatory fees should not exceed the full cost of service. 

In all cases, the cost recovery rate achieved by a fee should not be greater than 100%. In most cases, 

imposing a fee above this threshold could change the definition of the charge from a cost of service-based 

fee to a t ax which has other procedural requirements, such as ballot protest or voter approval. 

The next step in the process is for the Board t o adopt a "target" level of cost recovery for each fee, 

established at either 100% or any amount less than the calculated full cost of service. Targets and 

recommendations reflect discretion on the part of the agency based on a variety of factors, such as 

1 Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
User Fee Study Update 6 

P37 



existing District policies and agency-wide or departmental revenue objectives, economic goals, 

community va lues, market conditions, level of demand, and others. 

A general method of selecting an appropriate cost recovery target is t o consider the public and private 

benefits of the service or activity in question, such as: 

• To what degree does the public at large benefit from the service? 

• To what degree does the individua l or entity requesting, requiring, or causing the service 

benefit? 

When a service or activity benefits the public at la rge, there is generally little to no recommended fee 

amount (i.e., 0% cost recovery), reinforcing the fact that a service whi'ch t ruly benefits the public is best 

funded by general resources of the District, such as revenues from the Genera l Fund (e.g., taxes). 

Conversely, when a service or activity wholly benefits an individual or entity, the cost recovery is generally 

closer to or equal to 100% of cost recovery from fees collected from the individual or entity. 

In some cases, a strict public-versus-private benefit judgment may not be sufficient to finalize a cost 

recovery target. Any of the following factors and considerations may influence or supplement the pµblic

versus-private benefit perception of a service or activity: 

• If optimizing revenue potential is an overriding goal, is it feasible to recover the full cost of 

service? 

• Will increasing fees result in non-compliance or public safety problems? 

• Are there desired behaviors or modifications to behaviors of the service population helped or 

hindered through the degree of pricing for the activities? 

• Does current demand for services support a fee increase without adverse impact to the 

community served or current revenue levels? In other words, would fee increases have the 

unintended consequence of driving away the population served? 

• Is there a good policy basis for differentiating between the type of user (e.g., residents vs. 

non-residents, residential vs. commercial, non-profit entities, and business entities)? 

• Are there broader District objectives that merit a less than full cost recovery target from fees, 

such as economic development goals and local social values? 
' 

NBS provided the cost of service calculation based on 100% full cost recovery and the framework for the 

District's use to adjust the amount of cost recovery in accordance w ith its broader goals as they perta in to 

code compliance, cost recovery, economic development, and social values. 

2.2.4 COMPARATIVE FEE SURVEY 

Appendix B presents the results of the Comparative Fee Survey for the District. Policy makers often 

request a comparison of their jurisdictional fees to those of surrounding or similar communities. The 

purpose of a comparison is to provide a sense of the local market pricing for services, and to use that 

information t o gauge the impact of recommendations for fee adjustments. 

In this effort, NBS worked with t he District t o choose five comparative agencies - Contra Costa County 

FPO, Cosumnes CSD, Fresno County, Orange County, and City of Sacramento. It is important to keep the 

following in mind when interpreting the general approach to, and use of, comparative survey data: 

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
User Fee Study Update 7 

P38 



• Comparative surveys do not provide information about cost recovery policies or procedures 

inherent in each comparison agency. 

• A "market-based" decision to price services below the full cost of service calculation is the 

same as deciding to subsidize that service. 

• Comparative agencies may or may not base their fee amounts on the estimated and 

reasonable cost of providing services. NBS did not perform the same level of analysis of the 

comparative agencies' fees. 

• The results of comparative fee surveys are often non-conclusive for many fee categories. 

Comparison agencies typically use varied terminology for the provision of similar services. 

NBS made every reasonable attempt to source each comparison agency's fee schedule from their 

respective websites and compile a comparison of fee categories and amounts for the most readily 

comparable fee items that match the District's existing fee structure. 

2.2.S DATA SOURCES 

The following data sources were used to support the cost of service analysis and fee establishment phases 

of this Study: 

" The District's Adopted mid-year Budget for Fiscal Year 2022-23 

., A complete list of all District personnel, salary/wage rates, regular hours, paid benefits, and 

paid leave amounts provided by the Finance Department 

• Prevailing fee schedules 

• Annual workload data provided by CRRD 

The District's adopted budget serves as an important source of information thc1t affects the cost of service 

results. NBS did not audit or validate the Distric!'s financial documents and budget practices, nor was the 

cost information adjusted to reflect different levels of service or any specific, targeted performance 

benchmarks. This Study accepts the District's budget as a legislatively adopted directive describing the 

most appropriate and reasonable level of District spending. NBS consultants accept the Board of 

Directors' deliberative process and the District's budget plan and further assert that through this 

legislative process, the District has yielded a reasonable and valid expenditure plan to use in setting cost

based fees. 

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
User Fee Study Update 8 

P39 



3. COMMUNITY RISK REDUCTION DIVISION 

The Community Risk Reduction Division (formerly Fire Prevention Bureau) is responsible for protecting 

the public through coordinated efforts in fire prevention, code enforcement, fire protection engineering, 

fire and life safety education and fire investigation. Fire Inspectors responsible for code enforcement 

inspect existing buildings and properties for fire code violations, assist fire suppression personnel, 

respond to complaints, and review and approve licensed care facilities. Fire Inspectors are responsible for 

fire protection engineering review plans for all construction projects and fire protection systems and 

conduct the testing and inspections for those projects. CRRD also manages the weed abatement program, 

and reviews, approves and inspects special events, carnivals, fairs and fireworks displays. 

3.1 Cost of Service Analysis 

NBS developed a composite, fully burdened, hourly rate for each major functional activity of CRRD as shown 

in Table 2 below: 

Table 2. Fully Burdened Hourly Rate 

I 
. : Code : Inspections & 

Fire Weed 
Cost Element . b Complaint Permit Total 

Investigation A atement / f . 
, Response En Services 
I 

Labor $ 783,889 $ 54,338 $ 322,152 $ 2,058,496 $ 3,218,875 

Recurring Non-Labor 22,403 1,916 32,359 152,718 209,396 

District-wide Overhead 80,751 13,575 80,482 514,263 689,070 

Division Support Activities 801,939 63,130 393,259 2,463,994 3,722,322 

Reference: Direct Hours Only 588 

Overtime Rate $ 

Section 2.2, Methods of Analysis, further describes the types of expenditures and allocated costs 

considered in the development of the rate. All subsequent cost of service calculations at t[)e individual fee 

level assumes a fully burdened hourly rate of $233 for Fire Investigation activities, $226 for Weed 

Abatement, $327 for Code Complaint Response/Enforcement, $304 for Inspection & Permit service 

activities during regular business hours, and $333 for Inspection & Permit services after business hours. 

It should be noted that this Study also recognizes costs associated with services that are not generally 

recoverable in user or regu latory fees for service. As shown in Table 2, the ~otal cost of CRRD is $7.8 

million for all activities and services provided. However, only approximately $5.2 million of costs are 

eligible for recovery in the user and regulatory fees studied. The Division provides some services which 

are, for the most part, supported by general funds of the District such as Arson Investigation, and Weed 

Abatement. Similar to routine emergency response and suppression activities, these services should not 

be expected to achieve 100% cost recovery through user or regulatory fees for service. 

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
User Fee Study Update 9 

P40 



3.2 Fee Establishment 

The following broadly describes the services provided by the Division under each section of the proposed 

fee structure. 

• Sections A. Permits to Operate, B. Occupancy Inspections - CRRD issues one-time 

operational permits and inspects commercial and multifamily occupancies on a periodic basis, 

as required by local and/or State laws. Fees are structured by type of permit or service 

required, as well as occupancy or project type and size. 

• Section C. Development Plan Review and Inspection - The scope of this study determined 

the full cost of providing plan review and field inspection services related to construction of 

new buildings/ structures, as well as improvements to existing buildings/ structures. 

Additionally, CRRD also regulates installation and improvement to fire sprinkler and fire alarm 

systems, underground fire service, fire pump testing and water tank installation. 

" Section D. Miscellaneous - Includes the production of incident and investigation reports, 

copies, hourly rates for services required in excess of standard or performance of duties after 

hours, and other fee items not covered under previous categories listed. 

The following is a summary of the overall changes to the CRRD fee schedule: 

• Deletion of fees that are no longer used or needed: 

o Section B - Commercial day care: R-3 - 7-14 persons 

o Section C 

• Deferred submittal request 

■ Certificate of release - residential care facility/ large family daycare 

■ Underground tank 

o Section D 

■ Emergency response caused by driver under the influence (D.U.1.) 

■ Existing environmental hazard research (per½ hour) 

■ Controlled access (i.e. key switch, padlock or box) 

• Reorganization of fee categories or clarification of fee names to create a more user-friendly 

fee structure: 

o Section B 

■ Educational: public schools - this service used to be provided at no charge, 

but will now be charged at the same rate as private schools based on number 

of students. 

■ Mid rise inspections (4-6 stories) - this ~ervice is now included under the 

Commercial Business Inspection category based on square footage. 

• Addition of new fee categories, notated as "New" in the Current Fee column of Appendix A: 

o Section A 

■ Additive manufacturing 

• Outdoor assembly events (greater than 1,000 people) 

■ Carbon dioxide systems 

• Energy storage sy'stems 

■ Lithium batteries 

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
User Fee Study Update 10 

P41 



■ Mobile fueling of hydrogen-fueled vehicles 

o Section B 

■ Educational: 500+ students 

■ Commercial business inspections - 200,001- 500,000 sq. ft. 
■ Commercial business inspections - 500,001 sq. ft. or greater 

o Section C 

■ Design review/consultation - Plan design review & additional hours 

■ Hazardous materials - dispense/use & storage 

■ Energy storage systems {ESS) 

■ Temporary sales trailer 

■ Cryogenic fluids 

■ Flammable and combustible liquids 

■ Fuel cell power systems 

■ Gas detection systems 

• Industrial ovens 

■ Motor vehicle repair rooms and booths 

■ Plant extraction 

■ Special event structures 

■ Haunted house 

■ Enhanced vapor recovery system 

■ Kiosk/booth/special concessions in mall (temporary) 

■ Spraying and dipping 

■ Standpipe systems 

o Section D - passthrough credit card processing fee 

3.3 Cost Recovery Evaluation 

Appendix A presents the results of the detailed cost recovery analysis of fees for the District's Community 

Risk Reduction Division. In the Appendix, the "Cost of Service per Activity" column establishes the 

maximum adoptable fee amount for the corresponding service identified in the "Fee Description" list. 

Currently, CRRD is recovering approximately 45% of the total cost of providing services from fees. As 

Table 3 shows, the District collects approximately $2.6 million per year in revenue at the current fee 

amounts. At full cost recovery and the same demand level for these services, the District would recover 

approximately $5.7 mill ion. 

Table 3. Cost Recovery Outcomes 

Annual Estimated Annual Estimated 

Fee Category Revenues at 

Current Fee 

Permits to Operate and Occupancy Inspections $ 809,217 

Development Plan Reivew and Inspection $ 1,743,621 

Miscellaneous $ 12,433 

Total $ 2,565,271 

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
User Fee Study Update 

Revenues at Full 

Cost Recovery 

$ 1,863,637 

$ 3,849,292 

$ 15,209 

$ 5,728,139 

Annual Cost Existing Cost 

Recovery Recovery 

Surplus/ Deficit Percentage 

$ (1,054,420) 43% 

$ (2,105,672) 45% 

$ (2,776) 82% 

$ (3,162,868) 45% 

11 

P42 



NBS provided a full cost of service evaluation and the framework for considering fees, while the Board will 

adopt the appropriate cost recovery levels at or below full cost amounts. 

3.4 Comparison Survey 

As discussed in Section 2.2.4, Comparative Fee Survey, NBS compared the Division's current list of fees to 

those of 5 comparative agencies. While the results of comparative fee surveys are often non-conclusive 

for many categories, NBS made every reasonable attempt to source each comparison agency's fee 

schedule. 

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
User Fee Study Update 12 . 

P43 



4. CONCLUSION 

Based on the outcomes of the Cost of Service Analysis, Fee Establishment, and Cost Recovery Evaluation 

presented in this Study, the proposed Master Fee Schedule has been prepared by the District for 

implementation and included in the District's Staff Report. 

As discussed throughout this report, the intent of the proposed fee schedule is to improve the District's 

recovery of costs incurred to provide individual services, as well as adjust fees where the fees charged 

exceed the average costs incurred. Predicting the amount to which ·any adopted fee increases will affect 

District revenues is difficult to quantify. For the near-term, the District should not count on increased 

revenues to meet any specific expenditure plan. Experience with the revised fee amounts should be 

gained first before revenue projections are revised. However, unless there is some significant, long-term 

change in activity levels at the District, proposed fee amendments should enhance the District's cost 

recovery performance over time, providing it the ability to stretch other resources further for the benefit 

of the public at-large. 

The District's Master Fee Schedule should become a living document, but handled with care: 

• A fundamental purpose of the fee schedule is to provide clarity and transparency to the public 

and to staff regarding fees imposed by the District. Once adopted by the Board of Directors, 

the fee schedule is the final word on the amount and method in which fees should be charged 

and supersedes all previous fee schedules. If it is discovered that the master document is 

missing certain fees, those fees will eventually need to be added to the master fee schedule 

and should not exist outside the consolidated, master framework. 

• The District should consider adjusting these user fees and regulatory fees on an annual basis 

to keep pace with cost inflation. For all fees and charges, for example, the District could use a 

Consumer Price Index adjustment that is applied to the new fee schedule. Conducting a 

comprehensive user fee Study is not an annual requirement, and only becomes worthwhile 

over time as shifts in organization, local practices, legislative values, or legal requirements 

result in significant change. 

As a final note, it is worth mentioning the path that fees, in general, have taken in the State of California. In 

recent years, there is more public demand for the precise and equitable accounting of the basis for 

governmental fees and a greater say in when and how they are charged. It is likely that into the future, 

user and regulatory fees will require an even greater level of analysis and supporting data to meet the 

public's growing expectations. An agency's ability to meet these new pressures will depend on the level of 

technology they invest in their current systems. Continuous improvement and refinement of t ime tracking 

abilities will greatly enhance the District's ability to set fees for service and identify unfunded activities in 

years to come. 

Disclaimer: In preparing this report and the opinions ond recommendations included herein, NBS hos relied on a number of princ/pol assumptions and considerations with 
regard to f inancial matters, conditions and events thot moy occur In the future. This information ond assumptions, including the District's budgets, time estimate doto, 
and workload information from District staff, were provided by sources we believe to be reliable; however, NBS has not independently verified such information and 
assumptions. While we believe NBS' use of such information and assumptions is reosonoble for the purpose of this report, some assumptions will Invariably not materialize 
as stated herein and m oy vary significantly due to unontlc/pated events and circumstances. Therefore, the actual results con be expected to vary f rom those projected to 
the extent that actual future conditions differ f rom those assumed by us or provided to us by others. 

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
User Fee Study Update 13 

P44 



APPENDIX A 

Cost of Services Analysis (Fee Tables) 

Prepared by NBS for t he Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 

P45 



SACRAMENTO MrTROPOUTAN F1RE DISTRICT 
Community Risk Reduction Dlvlslon • Usu he Study FV23 
Estlmatron of Avua, e Cost of P1ovidln, Actlvitlu and Servfces 

fee 

N 
Fee Oe'.iC1i pl ion 

o. 

A. PERMITS TO OPERATE -I Add"'ftf\:e Manur.1,turing 
2 Aerosol Products (fint 500 lb.s.J 
3 Amusement Bul!dtngs 
4 Aviat!onhcilitles 

Carnivals, Fain, Festivals, Elhib;tions, or Special E\."i!nh (Plan 
Review & Inspection) 

a. Each additional booth, exhibits, etc. 
b. Outdoor usembfy events (g,uter thi n 1,000 peop!e) 

6 Cellulose flitrate fllm 
Combustlb!e Dust Ptodudng Operations 
Combu.stib!e Fibers 

9 Compreued Gases 
a. Carbon dioxide systems 

10 Covered and Open Mall Buildings 

11 Cryogenic Fluids 

12 Cutting and Weldtng 
13 DryClean'ng 

14 Energy Storage Systems 
IS Wublt and Trade Shows 
16 Exp!osives 
17 Fire Hydrants and Vak.-u 
18 Flammab!e and Combustible Uquld.s 

a. Un/Opt rate/Repatr Pipeline 
19 Floor Flnhhlng 
20 Fruit and Crop Ripening 
21 Fumigation and Insecticidal foggln 
n Haia,doos Mi t erials 

23 HPM Facilities 
2◄ lligh Pae St01age 

25 Hot WorkO~rationi 
26 Industrial Ovens 
27 Lithium Ballerles 
28 Lumber Yards & Woodworking Plants 
29 LI uld or Gas Fueled Vehlde.s In Assemb 

32 Mlscel!aneous Combustible Stou e 

33 Mob!!e Fueling of H\-drogen·Fueled Vehicles 

N55loc,!Go-,'1!1rvr;1t,t~,t 
Toi-rrtt: too 61&.7S16 Wt b: ._, ........ .r.bJlO"I.C~ 

Est imated 1 

Average Labor Fully Ourde-ned \ Cost o f Sctvice 

Timi."' PN Hourly Rate Per Activit'i 

Ac livity (hours) 

11111 
2.00 $ 30-4 $ 608 

2.00 $ 304 $ 608 

3.00 $ 30-4 $ 913 
4.00 $ 304 $ 1,217 

3.00 30-4 913 

0.10 $ 30-4 $ 30 

6.00 $ 304 $ 1,8 25 

2.00 $ 30-4 $ 608 

2.00 $ 30-4 $ 608 
2.00 $ 30-4 $ 608 

2.00 $ 30-4 $ 608 

2.00 $ 304 $ 608 

8.00 $ 30-4 $ 2,433 

2.00 $ 30-4 $ 608 
2.00 $ 30-4 $ 608 
2.00 $ 30-4 $ 608 

2.00 $ 30-4 $ 608 

2.00 $ 30-4 $ 608 

2.50 $ 30-4 $ 760 

2.00 $ 30-4 $ 608 
2.00 $ 30-4 $ 608 
2.50 $ 30-4 $ 760 

2.00 $ 30-4 $ 608 

2.00 $ 304 $ 608 

2.00 $ 30-4 608 
4.00 $ 30! $ 1,217 

4.00 $ 30-4 $ 1,217 

2.50 $ 30-4 $ 760 

2.00 $ 304 $ 608 

2.50 $ 304 $ 760 

2.00 $ 304 $ 608 
2.50 $ 304 $ 760 

2.50 $ 30-4 $ 760 
2.00 $ 30-4 $ 608 
2.00 304 $ 608 
2.00 304 $ 608 
2.00 304 $ 608 

2.00 304 $ 608 

3.00 304 $ 913 
0.25 304 $ 76 

6/13/2023 

Cuucnt Fee 

NEW 

$ 469 
$ 469 
$ 938 

$ 469 

$ 24 
NEW 

469 
469 
469 
469 

NEW 
1,-87S 

469 
469 
469 

Hl\Y 

$ 469 

$ 586 
$ 469 

$ 469 

$ 586 

$ 469 

$ 469 

$ 
$ 586 

$ 586 

$ 586 
$ 469 
$ 586 

NEW 

586 
586 
469 
469 
469 

NEW 

469 

h ist ing Cost 

Recovery 

Pi.'rcentage 

½ 
77~ 

5 1~ 

77~ 

51~ 

79½ 

II 

71½ 
77½ 

77½ 

77½ 

½ 
77~ 

77% 

77% 

77½ 

½ 

77:4 
77:4 
77;4 

77½ 

77½ 

71½ 

77½ 
0% 
48½ 

48~ 

77½ 
71½ 
77~ 
½ 

77% 
77~ 
77~ 
77:4 
77½ 
½ 

77:4 
½ 

O'.< 

APPENDIX A 

Annual Estimated Re.venue Analysis 

htima tl'd 

Volume of 

Activity 

25 

10 

2 

2 

30 

Annual h limated Revenues 

Cuuent f ee Full Cost 

$ 11,725 22,814 

$ $ 
$ $ 
$ $ 
$ $ 
$ $ 
$ $ 
$ $ 6,084 

$ $ 
$ $ 
$ $ 
$ $ 
$ $ 
$ $ 
$ $ 
$ $ 
$ $ 
$ $ 
$ $ 
$ $ 
$ $ 
$ 1,172 $ 2,433 

$ $ 
$ 2,930 $ 3,802 

$ $ 
$ $ 
$ $ 
$ $ 
$ $ 
$ 938 $ 1 217 

$ $ 
$ $ 
$ $ 
$ $ 
$ $ 
$ $ 2 281 

COS Pw~ u, "'' t of 9 

P46 



SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 
Community Rlsk ReducUon DMtlon-Usu Fee Study FY 23 

Es Um ii lion of A\'erage Cost of ProV.dlng: Activities and Services 

es an Can es 
Coi1Ungs 
r Assemb 

Q.99 
b. 100·29'9 

d. 300 or more 
41 Private Hydrants 

42 PyTotechn!c Speclal Effect s Mater i ii I 
a. Fireworks Aerial o;.splay 

1. 60 or less shells 
2. 61 to 120 shells 

3. 121 to 180 shells 

4. 181 to 2.(0 shells 

5. 241 or more shells 

b. Flrev.-orks Retail Stand 
c. Flrev..'Orks Set Pieces 

1. With Aerial D:Splay 
2. Without Aerial Display 

d. firev.'Orks- spedal effects Pyrotechn!c effects used In 
motion p:cture, te:evtslon, theatric.al and group entertalnmenl 
(first 2 hou,s] 

1. Each additional hour 

43 Pyro~1in Plastics 
44 Refrigeration Equipment 
45 Repair Garilges and Motor Fut l•Oi~pens!ng Facilities 
46 Rooftop Htllports 
47 Sprivtni or Dipping 
48 5t0fage of Scrap Tires and Tire Byproducts 

49 Temporary Membtane St1uctures & Tent'> 
a. --400 • l,499 s.f. 
b. 1,S00-2,99'9 s.f. 
c. 3,000 • 5,999 s.f. 
d. 6,000s.f. and abo\'e 

so Tire RebuMing Plo1nts 
51 Wi1Ste Hand0ng 

52 Wood Products 

53 Occupilncles with 2 or More Permtts, Each Additional Ptrmlt 

P..&S lon l GO",<tln-T.tr.t ~"lj 

Tot-r,u: 500.6l5.1S16 Wftl:111,•.,_•..,,r.bsp .co~ 

I .SO 
, .so 

1.50 
2.50 
3.00 
2.00 

6.00 
10.00 

10.00 

10.00 

10.00 $ 
I.SO $ 

1.00 

3.00 

2.00 

1.00 $ 
2.00 $ 
2.00 $ 
, .oo $ 
, .oo $ 
2.00 $ 
, .so $ 

111 
, .so s 
3.00 $ 
3.50 $ 
4.00 $ 
, .so $ 
2.SO $ 
, .so s 

(>) 0 .25 

APPENDIX A 

0'.4 
S86 77% 

4S6 234 51% 20 $ 4680 $ 9 12S 

760 3 73 49;.4 IS $ S 59S $ 11407 

913 586 6<% s $ 2,930 $ 4,563 

304 608 469 77l! $ $ 

304 1,825 1,406 771! I $ 1,406 1,825 

304 3,042 1,6-41 54% $ 
304 3,042 1,875 62½ $ 3,750 6,084 

304 3,042 2,108 69l! $ $ 
304 ~ 2,30 11% s $ 11,71S $ 15,209 

304 4S6 373 82~ 140 $ 52,220 63,878 

304 304 234 77½ $ 
304 913 469 51% $ 

304 608 469 77% 

304 $ 304 234 77l! $ 
304 $ 608 469 77~ $ 
304 $ 608 469 77% $ 
304 $ 608 469 77~ $ 
304 $ 608 469 771! $ 
304 $ 608 469 77~ $ 
304 $ 760 SS6 77~ $ 

304 $ 760 469 62~ 4 $ 1,876 s 3,042 

304 $ 913 586 6<1! 5 $ 2,930 $ -4,563 

304 $ 1,06S 702 66~ 4 $ 2,808 $ 4,259 

304 $ 1,217 819 67% s $ -4,09S $ 6,084 

304 $ 760 586 77l! $ $ 
304 $ 760 586 11:. $ $ 
304 $ 760 469 62% $ $ 

304 76 59 7&~ 

6/13/2013 COS Ptm:u. h it 2 ol g 

P47 



SACRAMENTO M£TROPOUTAH FIRE DISTRICl 
Community Risk Reduction DM1lon - Usu fee Study fY23 

Estimation of Aver1ge Cost of Providing ActMtlts and Services 

Fee' 

N 
Fee Description 

o. -8, OCCUPANCY IHSPEQIONS 

1 Commercial Diy Care 

a . 7.49 persons 

b. 50-149 persons 

c. I SO or more persons 

2 Educ.alfonal 
a. 1·99 students 

b. 100-199 students 
c. 200-499 students 

d. SOOt students 

3 lnstitutfonal 

a. Hospitals 

4 Pre-Inspection (R-2.1, R·3.1 and R-4 Facilities• H&S 13235) 

a. Faci litie s v.; th 25 or less persons 
b. Fac:lritles Y.i th 26 or rnore ~rsons 

s ttlgh Rise Inspections .. B-7to10Stor1es 

b. B-11 or more Stories 

6 Residential Apartment..s 

a. Up to 4 unill 
b. 5- 25 Unit..s 

c. 26-100 Unlls 

d . 101 - 300 Units 

e.301 ♦ units 
Res!dentfal Care Facilltics/Skilled Nursing Facifitle s Initial Fire 
Clearance/Annual Inspection 

a. 7-25 uolls 

b. 26-100 unlt..s 

c. 101·300 units 

d. 301 or more units 

8 Annual Inspection Hotel/Motel 

a. 7-25 units 

b. 26-100 units 

c. 101-300 units 

d. 301 Cir more units 

t.&SlonlGo-.'trrfl.crt So.\6o..·.s 
To:--F,u: V.0.67'-.lS16 Wtb:v.·•·..,.r.bicov.<orn 

Estimated 

,:., AverJ£e L.Jbor Fully Burdened • Cost of Sen,icc 

!l 
I 

Tirne Per Ho urly Rate Per Act ivity 

;Aclivity (hou, s ) -· (II 

2.00 $ 304 $ 608 
3.00 $ 304 $ 913 
4.50 $ 304 $ 1,369 

3.00 304 $ 913 

4.00 304 $ 1,217 

S.00 304 $ 1,521 

6.00 304 $ 1,82S 

13.00 304 3,954 

2.00 304 $ _ 608 

3.00 304 $ 913 

6.50 304 1,977 

8.00 304 2,433 

, .so $ 304 $ 456 

2.00 $ 304 $ 608 

3.00 $ 304 $ 913 

4.00 $ 304 $ 1,217 

5.00 $ ;04 $ 1,521 

3.00 ,o, $ 913 

4.00 304 $ 1,217 

5.00 304 $ 1,521 

6.00 304 $ 1,82S 

2.50 $ 304 $ 760 

3.00 $ 304 $ 913 

4.00 $ ' 304 $ 1,217 

S.00 $ 304 $ 1,521 

6/13/2023 

Cuucnt f ee 

234 
469 
586 

234 

469 
S86 

NEW 

1,87S 

234 
469 

1,523 

1,87S 

117 
352 

S26 
S79 

826 

352 

S27 

703 

878 

352 

527 

703 

878 

h isting Cost 

Recoverv 

Percent ,1ge 

38% 

51% 

43~ 

26% 

39% 
39% 

" 
47½ 

38~ 
51% 

77!-4 
77!-4 

26% 

S8% 
58½ 
48½ 

54% 

39½ 
43% 

46~ 

48½ 

46% 

58~ 

58½ 

58~ 

£\timated 

Volume o f 

Act ivity 

30 
50 

3 

S3 
24 
18 

101 

2 

25 
s 

1 

355 
240 

400 
220 ,. 

20 

20 

15 

2 

4 
IS 

20 

I 

APPENOtXA 

Annuat Estimated Revenues 

I Current Fee Fu ll Cost 

$ 7,020 $ 18,251 

$ 23,450 $ 45,627 

$ 1,758 $ 4,106 

$ 11,402 $ 48,365 

$ 11,256 $ 29,201 

$ 45,708 $ 118,630 

$ $ 184,333 

$ 3,750 1,909 

$ 5,850 $ 15,209 

$ 2,345 $ 4,563 

$ 
$ 1,875 2,433 

$ 41,535 161,976 

$ 84,480 146,007 

$ 210,◄00 365,016 

$ 127,380 267,679 

$ 11,564 21,293 

$ 7,0(0 $ 18,251 

$ 10,540 $ 24,334 

$ 10,545 $ 21,814 

$ 1,756 $ 3,650 

$ 1.408 $ 3,042 

$ 7,905 $ 13,688 

$ 14,060 $ 24,334 

$ 878 $ 1,521 

COSPwrJ°tl,PICt 3 of9 

P48 



SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 
Community Risk Reduction OMslon - User fee S!udv FY 23 
Estimation of A\'trage Cost of Providing ActMtles and Services 

b. 2001 - 5000 sq. ft. 

C. 5,001-10,000 sq. fl. 

d. 10,001- 20,000 sq. ft. .. 20,001--'0,000 sq. f t. 

f. 40,001- 80,000 sq. ft. 

g . 80,001 - 120,000 sq. ft. 

h. 120,001-150,000 sq. ft. 

I. 150,001 - 200,000 sq. ft. 

). 200,001 - 500,000 sq. ft. 

k. 500,001 sq. ft. or greater 

10 Storage Fad litl~s 

With lnler1or Couldots 

Without Interior Corridors 

11 lt Permits, each additional permit afte r first permit 

/Notes} 

I.SO 
2.25 

3.00 

3.75 

4.50 

5.25 

6.00 

6.75 

7.50 

10.00 

ll .00 

4.00 

3.00 

Ill 0.25 

$ 30I $ 456 $ 117 26% 

$ 3CM $ 684 $ 234 34% 

$ 3CM $ 913 $ 352 39% 

$ 304 $ 1,141 $ 469 41% 

$ 3CM $ 1,369 $ 586 43~ 

$ 3CM $ 1,597 $ 703 4411 

$ 3CM $ 1,825 $ 820 45% 

$ 3CM $ 2,053 $ 938 46~ 

$ 3CM $ 2,281 $ 1,055 46½ 

$ 304 $ 3,042 NEW % 

$ 3CM $ 3,954 NEW % 

304 1,217 786 65~ 

3CM 913 528 SB~ 

3CM 76 73 96½ 

{l ) ,,,m.·trtut-~t lnt•.:t~IWp,ection1r.dor4 rt'ru,;«tlo., F1!-.ift lOCO.Tlfl,.\, ... "lh WUP«i;o., prc,gvnOIU(Ol'.dtMU~ctiOn...O rtfUtlr'l d :£tlo;u llnspt<t:O.,fu1pcrStrtlon O, ilt-:nlc1'U-.:S tu 1c>.d-.i~ 

[1) 0<cvp1t'1du 11oith mut 1.1'\M\ hi.~« 11".?l't ftrrr.it1 $,",o,-...., ~, t►.t r.st abo-.-e ... :'I ns·it ~ 1 w,,, 1,1S:r c tt.e t,'V,ut 1.T#..-.t 1>.0A'\ fo~<t• "td t7I 1c'-d"L:O-WI ptr,..;u rt 1/4 of ~,o.xtfnt•. 

(3) ftt h auu ~ bu t--' on <VT.u'.JW't f • rir~"t11tie ttr.l ~ -~.,, foou ,1t 111 V.i!• ,'It. 

14) Fu ls 1utt1tdb11~00CVP/..tlM1,r,itl foou1t o.f1:'I bo..CS:.•111.·it!u a 1!..-{'ec,.,,a;o.u. 

r.l S loul Go,11tr.rr..tr.t So.\.(jo,,i 

ToJ..ft,tit::t00.6l&.7Sl6 W,b; ... .,. • .,.,,1:;110H o-n 6/13/2023 

APPENOU(A 

90 $ 10,530 $ 41,06-4 

35 $ 8,190 $ 23,954 

IS $ 5,280 $ 13,688 

IS $ 7,035 $ 17,110 

10 $ 5,860 $ 13,688 

8 $ 5,62◄ $ 12,776 

3 $ 2,460 $ s,475 

$ 938 $ 2,053 

$ 1,055 $ 2,281 

$ $ 
$ 

s $ 3,930 6,084 

s $ 2,640 4,563 

I 

COS Pwrits, P•l• 4 cf 9 

P49 



Su.ramf:nto Mf:tropollt an Fltf: Olsltlrt 
Commun.'tyRls'cRf:ductlon DMMon -Userru Study FY 23 

£.J,tlmatfon of A\'tUlf: Cost of Provldlnc ActMt lu and St n·ku 

1 
A bow ground link rrutalbtion, fbmmt b~/Combvslib~e Llqu'.ds 

Comprustd Gnu 

;ii. Addition.al Tal\_lt 

- Adm'nls1r1tlon Chuc e ro, Resubmilu:S, Upon lr.dor 
2 

Substqutnt Rt'.¼!on 
- ;ii. AdditionalHours 

;ii. fl.'.ltlo( Plt n Re-.~ew. O\~ r tht Count t r 

b. Bu!< Consl.nx1.Jon fl!e 

first tan_!c 

m h 

first hour "' 
~ -

Pf:tpfo]~t Ill 
pupro)ect Ill 

uo I .IO 

0.15 ~00 

'·"' 
1.00 

O.IO 

~ ~ 

3.00 '°' $ 913 '" 
__ 1.1_, _ ~ $ m 262 

1.SO '°' 
.,. 262 

~ '°' $ '°' 262 

~ $ '°' $ m U l 

3.00 ~ $ 913 262 

"'' 

"" .,,. 

"'' "" 

60 

40 
135 

39,300 

137,SSO 

S,240 
35,310 

Al'PfHDOC A 

54,7S2 

239,542 

6,084 

113.193 

c.. Comrr~ rWI Usu (New Constructk>n) 
1 0001 lOOOOsf pf:rp1o;ert 200 2.00 4.00 31)4 ~ S 35' 70% 45 $ 38,520 $ 54,752 

l---l----',"":"'10:::,,00-";'-'_"",o'°,ooo=·,::..:,.- --------l-"'=='-I- ----t.iol--~, .'°so+---","".oo'--l-'---=,:::::,.'-l-'$'--,",s">'-1l-$'--,-'.oo,=l~-' .. :.:,.:e_-1-- ---"','+-'$'----'"'1,"'oo"'s•l-"$- ~l"-,,'-','-,I 

I-+---''"-· ,,,o,,,,oo,,,,cc·"'"'"''ooo=•"-'·c.._ _ ______ --1...c'-'' "';:;•ec!•:,:ct:,..i_ .,..._..r--2.~ J.so 1.00 s 304 $ 2,119 $ 1,n1 1---=:"::::"'---I-- - -'-' 1-S'---'''-'•10::::>cµSc..__::,••"'""-I' 
4. >So,001 s.f. scaled pu sJ. IJI o.oooot__ o. 7 , o,f'92!.~-~ J,._ __ _,o.,:64""1-::.S _..:0::::.0::.1 ¾---"nlc::•--1--- -='=-o l-S,__ __ ..:o+:S'-----~ 

d. Convnudal Res...tdentW and Muttifamlty Ru!dentlil Usu 
(Nt'N 8 '.l=d:n,1} 

1.0. 10,ooo s.1. 2.SO 2.00 450 S 3041-'$'---"1,3"'0-'-•r.-S-~'::' =-' 1--'"'''-'"-+-- -~' =-' 10S;-_cc19'-'.6'-'50, S 1,.220 
2.10,001 - 20,ooos.f. 1.00 2.so 550 ~ $ 1,673 $ 1,057 65½ 30 $ 32.610 $~ 
3. 20,001-50,000s.f. pu pco!ect 4.00 3..00 7.00 $ 304 $ 1,129 $ t.66l 7&% 25 $ 41,575 S 53,232 

l--l-- --'4::._,"so"",00=-,::Lf". ="'----------·l m:edpt rsJ. 1i1 ' O.c«iOS !;. zj,,O.cijg:}4~ O.OQQ~ - $ 304 S ~ $ 0.02 n/a 4 $ O $ 

e. Comn'.f:tOII Stouce / Wuehouse (lltw B11i'dl\C) 

l .O·SO.OOOs.f. per p,o!ttt 2.50 2.00 4.SO 304 $ 1,3&9 $ 156 63~ s $ ◄,2!0 $ 

~+--=':..:·'°::c•c::00:::1.;.;·2,::00::,,000=:c•-'::..· ______ __ 4 _,,;=c«c,P:::••,,:«.,,t-l 4.00 J..00 7.00 $ 304 $ 1,129 $ 1,215 I--'==· _ 4 _ _ _ -'-li-<----'-=-1-"--'" ''::'.:.i' 
1--1---=' :..:· '.::'oo:::•::coo:::1c::Lc:.'·----------+.=" ::.1!e::•.c.••::.' .::'-'::..· l-'1"-111 ~ o;ooooz ~~ 0.00001..,j "'g:~ s 304 ~ ... 0.01-l-'s'----=o.=-01:+-_ n/=• - +----'-1-'-'---"+'--- -.:.i ' $ 2,510 $ 

' $ 0 $ 

1-'::.-<::om="'::."o::·•::.'"::'cc" .,_(T.,_"::.'::."'~'m=•°'::.•::.m::.'°::.'LI -----1- --- - l- ----l--- -l---- -1----¾--- - --l-- - 4----l----1-- --1-1~----1 
L0,001-10,000s.f. pupco;ect 2.00 2.00 4.00 $ 304 10$,__-"1,::Uc.7r.-$ __ 6:::'5: + - ':::':::" - -1-----'=1-"-- ==+"-~ '='~'•0::lc=-3I 740 150,000 

2. 10,001- 20.000 s.f.. ~ _ ~ 2.so s.oo ~ $ 1,s21 S 1,142 75% 53,232 
l--l---",'-'.,""o,"'00::1--'-,::o.'°ooo"-'-,_::.,.---- -----+ pupro;«.t l .00 3.50 6.SO S 304 $ 1,917 S 1,s,o 791' 39,543 

35 39,970 

,o 31,◄00 

1-+ - -'•:..:·'.:;'°o:•00=1 •::.-'·'---------~---+m'.tdpusJ . ..!!. ~ ~ , o,OQOU ,.. ~ ~l-'$'----'-o.=-•''-l----=---n/"--=-•==-1---=l--'-----'-+'---- -'-1' 
e- Hl&h P;?ed SIOJi&I! RaU: (Tenant lmpro\~rr.ent) " 0 

1. 0,001-10,000s.f. 
2.10,001- 20,000 s.f. 
3, 20,001 - S0,000 s.f. 

4. >S0,001 s.f. 

KSSttolG~.u r.~l~.t~ 
Tol-fnt: 100..05-lil' Y,~\o;,o•••-.l'~ IJ,;>I..COO 

pt tp10Ject 
purcro;ect 
pu pro:,ct 

sca',dpersJ. 

LOO 1.50 -
'·"' ,.oo 
3.00 , ... 

111 ~9~ o.oooos" 

3.50 $ 304 

4.50 $ , .. 
5.IO $ 304 

- ()~ -~ 

6/13/2023 

$ 1,065 $ 714 .,,. 5 $ ~ $ S,123 

$ 1,369 $ ... 73>< - --' $ 1,991 $ 
$ 1,673 $ l,US "" I $ 1,285 $ 

~---S91 $Ml ,,. I $ 0 $ 

◄,106 

1,613 

P50 



Suramtnto MttJopolltan rltt Ohlrkt 
Commun;ty Rhli: RtducUon 0h<slon • Ustr ftt Study fV 2l 
[s1fm1Uonof A\<ttai e Cost of Ptov'.dlnt ActMtlu and Sen.icu 

1--f-·-•"-·. "'C0::.2-=.b":.c•:.,<>c,l,c.«,cliaccP':.,M::;'"'=---------l pu p1o;e:ct ·l - -l-- ----'l"".S0=+---'-'1.S0=!---=-3 .'-"00'---+'----'3'-0<:+"$----'g"1'-3 1-'-- -'6"°SS=+----''"-""-'-l----"'I0:+"$'--_.=,6,"'SS'-"O+-'-----'g""'l'-"l-'-SI 
b.MtdkalGu pupro!tct 2.00 Z..50 ◄.SO 304 $ 1,169 SH 38~ 1 $ 524 1,369 

a. In office consult pu PIO!tct 1.00 1.00 $ 304 30-I $ U l 0% S $ 6SS $ ],SU 

1. Additionalhoun ptrhou, 1.00 1.00 $ 30-I $ 304 S 262 86% $ $ 
l----l--'b"-. .::;OUc,_l .::;of.:,_o:.:,ffk,:•..:;«=>">u::.,.:t _________ ,1-'f':..:'.:.;ll:.,h:,:ou::."'--1 l---'"·OO::c+--..:..-t----'''-'.00:::.....-1--=-S __ 3,:,0<::.l-1-St===~60~11-=-$- -=.:Sl::., -:-_-=.-=::.::;s,:6~ll~-=-1 -=--=--=--=--=--=--s~:-t$,_-_-_-_-.!,!l-,6-!!!_ila-'S~~~~J3,:,-0<;-11,1 

l.AddiUon1lhoun ptthour 1.00 1.00 $ 304 $ 30-I $~ 86% $ S 

l----l--'~::;Pl:.::•:.::".c::••e:.•':.:•";;':,:W.:::••::;N _______ __ -1-_::f"c,:" :.::ho.::;u::_•-1- ~ 1----=-1-..:lc::.00::_-1 s '°' 1-$=---=-'°'"'-f- ":.::'c::Wc._4----'"c._-1-- --l-s"----l..:Sc__ _ _:-J 
l~ -l~--''"'·A.::dc;ditlo="::;"ochou::.•::;•~--,c-~-----1--"-P'.c.'~hou=-r - I 1.00 1.00 ~ 30-I IICW ~ $ $ 

7 Eme,ge:ncyRuporujuR1dloCow:n1e (£RRC) ~,hoot 1.00 1.00 2.00 $ 304 608 ~ 1---'"'--1-- ----"'0"-l0Sc.._ _ __:-J.:!.$ __ -:.,6,0l=:.i4 
8 Flte:A.!1rmS·(Sttm 

1----1--'~"-•=-·':..:'c,O:,c"c:::'~,c"c._ __________ -l-P'-'''-'' •:.::••,:'"'°'''--l-- l---'' ·:::00=-1---'".oo::::.,_c:.•·:::OO'---l"'----"'°'=l-'$'----''"''''-'"=-1.L- "'S60~_.::;'6:,:llc_--1-__ ..,,~s+-"-$ _ _.::;.,,0•600~µ$c._-=.,IO:.:.l,cc4l:.!.j1 
l-- l--b"-.c'l6c..,·SO=O•c.cv.::;«cc• __________ -t~•:.:•~••~••"':"cc'c... l l---'"·'°cc.+---'' ".OOc.l~~---='°'=t-$,---"1,"67.=.3p.$ __ 6,,l.=.5f--3"-'7-"~- -l----=-"c.ic$,___1,c5"",6"lS' ~$---'<"'1,8,cl-=-l5 

c. 51-100 De'i.<-ts pu pro!Kt J..SO 4.50 8.00 30-4 $ 2,,433 $ 7-40 305' JS $ 11,100 $ 36,502 
d.> 100 Dtv.<ts pu pro!Kt S.00 8.00 13.00 30( $ 3,954 S U4 llK 15 $ 13,260 $ 59,315 

1---l--';:,· .;,So:::"""=';,.:' s:.c":::'""='".::•..:m:.:":..":::"..:•..:""='"':_ _____ ,. ~I pro;«t I.SO 1.00 350 304 $ 1,()65 S 262 2S% ss $ U.◄10 $ 58,SSS 
f. Commun.'u lion up111de "",", -~«t ~ l----"l.00~ - -'3:c,5,,._0 - J+-----''°'~l-'$'--.....!!1,06~5 !+$ _...;>,e6!..2 l---'le,5:,,ll _ _ l---~"'-JcS'-----'''°' ',:.'1e,Oc~$- -"-S,e8,Se.,S'.'-JS 

9 firtAo-N/11),:lr•ntTut u1 2.00 2.00 3a. $ 609 S SU 81:i" $ $ 

10 Are Sprfn\l-er System• Commt.idal (Ne:w lruu1l'~Oon) 

1----1--''"-· ,._1.g'-'9""'"°",::;'::,kl.::;"c:.:''------ ------l..JP'""-'' P:.::••2:l''°'"-l-l----':::·OO=+---"' =.OO"-l- ---'g"'.00:::.....-1-.:._ __ lO<=+..<.-..:' •.:."::'~ - -"'Sl,c<.1-.....:c• •:c~c__l-_ _ ..:S0::.1-<--"""-'·'c:::OO'-f-"'---"13"'6,e:88"1~ 
l--t-- b"-.c'100-= ••c.c•.=,•Pcc""ccu,,,~"~---------l· pe:rpro!tct ~ l---'".OOCCJ--- -"'"''oo'+---''.,,1.oo,,,_-+~ --""= 1+- ;'•"-""'·-H- c-"'•s,,s+--"'°""'---l--_;:'°,ci.L._.,,,.,.,,,,,00,_H'--"""'''".,'-' . .. 1 
l-- l--'~::;2:.:00::.'"="'::c••c:c•;,•P:.:M:.:ll<:o•:.:.•---------I-..J .. !:.!:..J' '"''•,:'•'°''''--1--1----'•:::·00=+-- --' .. " oo"'l~l--'-----"'°'=l-"----''"''':.:."=-i-'---''".3"'10=-i---=':.:.'K~-1----"''+''----''~'•:c•'°c:.i-"-----'''"""''o"-••::.1 

11 nteSprlnUuSysttm•CommudilfT.I.) 

1---l--''"-· =-•·•"•"'•.,..cc·:::u::o•c.:"--- --------1-..J"'=' •:.:••,,:•o:"- 1-- l----'' ".so=+-- ---''"'·oo:=.i~l--'-----"'"'°''+"$--'-''"''06"-'-s l--'----'' ""•''-l---''"'"~''--1----'' "" +''---''"''•o:"::.•.i-=-- -''"""''•::.••!.l 
b. 100-199 spMUm ptr p,o!td L7S 3.00 4.75 304 $ 1,◄45 S60 3914 S $ 2,600 7,224 

13 SprlrJ:Ju Syu, m Svbdlvi~on Ptoduction pe:r p!,n l----•:c·OO::c+- - ..:' ·=oo"-l ---=-'.oo=--ll--'--- --"'o"','-P$: _ __:•:.:."=-1-'---=':.:.":.i~ 1----"'•c::OOO::c+..:.$ _ _,s:.:.l4"',ooo=i..<...- -=-":.:'"''-""' I 
14 flesldtnlii lS lnlJttS)<Sttm(T.I.) ptrpbn 1.SO Z.00 350 304 $ 1,06S O"-' 1 $ l .06S 

1-''-''+''"''"'.::"'c:'::::'';.clS,::P'.:c'":::""=''c::":.:.•m=":::•":.:·•.:;'od::.uct=Ton=) ---- ~- perl)lo!ect l- -1---"l.SO=-i-- -''"'.so"-l __ S"'.00=....-J-"----""➔'• -=-S_..:•a:•'.::":.J-''----=-••"':..i ---=''""''-+---''°c::.~-=-$ _ _.:c<S,,:.8'"50::.µc.._......::106=••:c•':..i 

1_•,,•-i=°'='c;." "'='"cc'cc'""''"""'"'"'''•:.::".=.SY',.c.•cc.•m='"~'•I•=••------l· pu pro;e,t l- +---"2."'so'+-- --''"·00"4-_ •ecs,:,Oc_~ c__.:c'°'"-l--l-S_ .,:1,:,3!:69cµc._--=-•Se.,S'-l---''"''~'-+--....:,' gS_---'3,c,l,_,75:,+f--- c"' "''8:,,4''-l 
17 Hood&O\.•rtfl1e~pp1tn'cnS ltm pusyste:m l .00 Z.00 ◄.00 304 $ 1,217 SH 43% 60 $ 31,00 7l,00l 

filSloc:al~.-,:tr~ISd'.JW:'.s 
ToHot:too.m,~1, w,x .. -..• .. J"!14~•-'~ 6/13/2023 

P51 



Sur•mento MtllopolitJn Art Dhtrict 
Community Rhk Reduction DMJlon • Ustr r u Study FY 23 

EstlmJtlon of A\·tra&t Cost of ProYldini AttMtlts ar.d hrvfcu 

18 ,.,1,ppinc ru -(I.e. fltw subdl\{s!oni/sitt p!an,) 

Elect.ton't For mu 
1.0·lSloU 
2. 26- IOOloU 

3 . 101 o, more lots 

19 AhuHoun 

J.PlanP.t\1.ew 
1. PJst 2 hours 
2. £uhitdditional hour 

b. lnsp«Uon 

t.Fint2houn 

2. Each additlorul hour 

~ Site Han Rt'✓.f-W 

a. Ptrirtw!tu f tMU\g / Guu 

b. OIJ ltnptO\'fmt nl 

" Underaroc.md Flit Supp,'y Unt ht 3 Hyd1-1nH/IUms) 

1. EaUI additiori,\ 3 Hydrants 

" (YiNillon PIJ.n Rt'i.tw 

" Smole Control o, Smo\:t hhaust Systems 

" Spuy8oo1M 

" Ce:J TOWff (outi'de roof, po!t, e tc.) ,. LPG Gu Tinklrut1h tlon • Commercial 

" I.PG Propane Tan\:: lnst,!1 • Rnldenl~ I ,. Statlona,v Flrt Pum 

" H1u rdous Materials 

a, Hanrdous Materh::S Otlpense/Use 

1.1-S chem!u:S 
2. heh o1dditJono1I S chem!uts 

b . Huvdous Mattria:S Stor,,e 

1. l·Schern.~ ats 
2. h(hadditiotlal S chem!u:S 

30 So!uP,nel 

New Pane:s ot1 Rtsicft n\ial 

Commercial 
31 £nuCYSton&t S)'Sltmi (ESSJ 

a. Ru!denUal 
I. Res!dentbl ESS Muter Phn • S,JbdM1.\on Homes 

ii. Ru!dtn tial ESS SubdMl'.on • Production Horr.ts 

b. (01N?'t,t1dal 

" Tempou,y B!lldinJ Use 

33 TtmpouryS1'u Tri~er 

3' s11,r.1e T~tw!on Letter 

35 \'/.:I Serve l etttr P1ocu ,rng 

36 crvo,et1k f?\i~s 

37 f~m.mb!e aMt Combusb"b~t Uqu'd1 

38 Fuel CeU Po-.a.·tr Systems 

r,,'f.Sl« ,IG:M.tT • ..,t·t So':.W.a 
Tcl-ftu: too.0 6.1515 Wc'):-..•..-.. .1hf,;v..(<d 

----
perpro!«t 1.00 

rmpro!« t 1.00 ... ro!«t ~ 

---- -
ft1st2hO'JIS 2.00 

'"°'' 1.00 

-~ !.00 
pt.tho-Jr 1.00 

' ro't ct I.SO ,.oo 
ptrpro!tct 3.00 1.00 

perpro!Kt _...!!:'!. 4.00 

ptrh\-dro1 n1 0.50 ,.oo 
pup,o!« t ,.oo 2.00 

pupro'«t 4.00 5.00 ... ro!« t 2.00 1.00 ... to{K t I .SO 1.00 

ptrpro;Kt I.SO 1.00 

ptrpro!« t I.SO 1.00 ... ro!td - ~ ,.so 

perpro;«t - 3.00 1.00 
pe rpco;ect 3.00 1.00 

... ro;«t - ~ lOO 

perpro!«t 3.00 1.00 

- ---
Ptr pro;« t I.SO 1.00 

perpro;«t - I.SO I.SO 

perpro!«t I .SO I.SO 
per pro!« t - ,.so 
ptr pro!t(t 1.00 

perpro!t(t ~ ----.:so 
perpro!ed _...!!:'!. I .SO 
per pro!t<t I .SO I .SO 

Pf'ff?'O!t<t 1.00 
pt.r pro:«t 1.00 

pt.t ro!«t I .SO I.SO 

p er pro:«t 1.00 l .00 

per pro!«t 6.00 I .SO 

APPlNOIXA 

1.00 304 304 m .... 
2.00 304 608 m '"' ~ 304 913 m S7:' 

2.00 m "' m .,,. 
1.00 m 331 m 1S7~ 

2.00 333 .. , m .,,. 15 -4,17S 10,002 

1.00 333 m m 157~ 

3.SO 304 $ 1,065 m .. ,. 35 $ 18,3.CO $ 37,262 

4.00 304 $ 1,217 m .,,. llO $ 68,120 $ 158,17-4 

5.50 304 $ 1,673 "' "" 40 $ 20,960 $ 66,920 

2.SO 304 $ 1£0 Ill 17½ 5 $ 65S $ 3,802 

4.00 304 $ 1,117 m 43~ I $ m $ 1,217 

9.00 "" $ 2,738 ,,. ,.,. $ $ 

3.00 304 $ 913 m "" I $ m $ 913 

,.so 304 $ 760 m "" l5 $ 13;lSS $ 26,616 

,.so 304 $ 760 .,. ,.,. I $ 428 $ 760 

2.50 304 $ 760 39) "" $ $ 

S.00 304 ~ 1,572 101% 5 $ 7,UO $ 7,605 

5.00 304 1,S21 NEW " 
5.00 304 J,SU HEW " 
~ 304 1,521 HEW " 5.00 304 1,5.!l NEW " 

2.50 ~ $ 760 m .... 
3.00 $ 304 $ 913 m "" 30 lS,720 27,176 

- ~ ~ 913 !IEW " 100 $ $ 1112,508 

I.SO $ 304 $ 456 NEW " $ 
_$ ___ 

1.00 $ 304 $ 304 NCW " $ $ 

7.50 $ 304 $ 2,111 NEW " $ $ 2,281 

3 .00 ~ $ 913 m ~ $ l,S72 $ 2,738 

3.00 $ 304 $ 913 HEW " $ $ 

1.00 $ 304 $ 304 "' 86% ' $ 514 $ 608 

1.00 $ 304 $ 304 "' .... JO $ s,uo $ 6,034 

3.00 $ 304 $ 913 NCW " $ $ 
, .oo ~ $ 1,217 NEW " $ $ 
7.50 $ 304 $ l,lat NEW " $ $ 

6/13/2023 COS fWl ~ir-& h ,"uf.:,r.s_r,,, 1t1, 

P52 



Sacramento Met1opollt•n Fire Oiitrict 
Comrnun:ty Rh\: Reduction ~ -ition • User f ee Study N 23 

fstlmallon of A\'u•ce Cost o f PrOV.dTniActM tlu .1nd Suv<cu 

Gas Detection Systems 
,o !ndustri,10-.'tn 

" Motor Veh!dt. Rt 1:lt Rooms and Sooths 

.£. PllntElUictlon 

" Sp« ill frent StnJctures 

" tiiunted House 

" [NW\(.td Vapor Rf.CO\'f,Y Spt t.m .. KlosVBooth~dal C°'1cen!ons tn MaJ (te.mpouiy) 

'' Sp,ay'.na atldo: .. 5tandp'pe5 terns 

[Notu} 

PHPfO!td 1.50 
perpro!ed l.SO 
pupro:«t 1.50 

perpro!«t 2.50 

perpro:e<t -.:so-
perpro!ed LIO 
perp,oJed 1.00 

perpro;ect 0.'15 

pe.rpro/Kt - ,.oo 
perpro-Ject 2.50 

Ill r111;p!!:of:,1~ ..JIC#W~ 105:.1:;¢.~, •1t~fl1tF'o~.:tul.,-.du1 rt-<h<\l•cl.,.!1~ 1:'1..,-i;.i ~ , r11-,fu. 

(JI A r•iraFJ,l.1b(rvi.~$ t;~c¢1!ton101etr1u1tNi:1,f,..id,.:,,K(';ucl•o1i.HIL'tltr~.c<tt-,L~.e:ru1h1►~ 

1.50 3.00 

~ 3.00 

1.50 3.00 
,.oo 4.50 

1.50 3.00 

1.50 3.IJO 

1.00 2.00 

0 .7S 1.50 

2.00 , .oo 
2.50 5.IJO 

()) ful!r~d.ubttt»t\.11"wr'tJft'l l."r,,~ti1hu._'wN'Jbli,:,.p't~t!,0$11 b ~ • 'l:~u po;tttfuf, - ~w~.-u.~.,, ~•lr~~,1f. wJ,tr$.l. cnt r-u"t·?':'ut 

t.n l col G,"'1,.,...Ct Sc..'Sc:-.1 
TO'Hft t :l.oo.6-?f.)51' \'.._ll:•-..•• ..t~1l~A«- 6/13/2023 

APPffiot:xA 

304 m NEW " 304 m HEW " 
"" m NEW " 30-I 1,34' NEW " 304 m HEW " 304 m HEW - -"--
304 001 HEW " 30-I <56 NEW " 304 1,217 HEW " 304 1,521 HEW " 

P53 



Sauamento Metropo1it1n Fire Dbtrkt 
Community lllik Reduction Dfvblon - Ustr Fu Study FY 23 

Estimation of Averace: Cost of ProV:dlnc ActMtlu andStrvfcu 

,,. 
No . f ('c De~oiplion 

.. 
2 Add"itlonal lfupectlon/Reln1ptctk>n (ptr 1/2 hou,) 

_...!..Appeals 
4 cop;u of Rt s, Photovaphs, tic. (see SMF - Pub~c RecordsAc:t Po!cy} 

S Dlitrict App,ratus Emugtncy Rtsponse/Staod·B'f 
6 CommercQI Fabe Alum Coit Rtca.'f:ty {pu response) 

a. Ptoctn:t\l and Inspection 1tquirt d (pt r mporue) 

b. Supprt.n!on Un:t Rt sp()C\Se Co1t (per hour) 
c. lr,1pecUon Fo!#.vup (afttr ln:tlal cout ctlon notk t) {per 1/2 hour) 

7 lnvtsti&ation Fte • Fite lr,.,'f:1tij1tlon (fnl hour) 
each additional hour 

8 IM'f:1tl1atlon Ftt • Compl,lnt ln-.<t stfiatlon (fiuthovtl 

g Mon.itorin& Requiled E~c.uatioo Dn-:!s 
10 Uegt iently caused Art Emereency 

11 
Re.se:arch ofDdtrict Rtt0<ds [per 1/1 houri {pfus copych1r&t ofSl.OOfor the 

f111t PiJt: p\11 s.10 per pa, e thtieafttr) 

12 Rtsporuts P.itient Asslsunct Request from •for Profit .. Care Fa&"ties 
13 StandbyPeuOMel or 5afety0ffictr 

14 fechn:cal Rtport/Akernatr,, Mate rial Of Melhod Proce:n!na (2 hour mlr\'.mum) 

15 Lost Fire Puma Card 

16 Special lrupectlon Requests {Not otherw:Se spt<if.ed ln fee schtdu~) 
17 Cred;t ~rd Proct ul/la f ee 

18 Cost RtcO\'f:ty 811ed on Actu;i,l llme (per hour) 
a. Fire ln\<e:st11al~ 
b. Wttd Ab;i,tement 
c. Code Comp!1!nt 
d. lnipection & Permit St n.~cu 
t . Suppru1..'on 

/f,'-oruJ 
~lcc,b U'cV.:SC:tl.a.•...-:,.nSf'rtMoll)-.t!fu W.~✓tvt'rv~• ._,"IO'.ru. Scrv7ce 1~•\/ltd 

111 ln uttll c-fV°.t~1a'.:::l h(N.'1td 1tH'-c:;itdMe ,ritu. 

\ \~t>".t!'N t>.e flre (1;'.d d"u;P"O't1 .. , •~~lo'\. u ,1--..u<I 1(111•~1 • ~ ii-~'\ 1;;,-=-td ro,," 
"""UI Iii ls d,u,,-'"J 1)--11 l~c prvb'ou c.i l~.t: C.C-!t t:, l'IC( 1~;.l'/, u W I 1\ c Ul.'t l:.t u J: J•d 1:t cl-4 

Ill i:s:~~::~~"':t~~(~;;;~~i:;:t:~~:::~:!::~:t~:~~•~!~-:'1~ 
cuv;«.f"'tl(f11d11<'\~Jtl Xlu'.u.:lirl.')'$. T>.c~ .. d NOOv'.ctflrt ~ ,rdll ,~at. Th'lftt:b; 
r~ ~1Cc~(lllf,;Ulbv1·tN J •.J1">1.'.'l 1c~1.,,i,-( 1;,;.t1li«\!r.'u.Ut'C!\. 

OJ ~;;:~;~:1w~:~-&;~~:;~~1::...: .-.:::;,~c~:::7;:;' 10 wrs f1~c J~ra 

1•1 :::i:~~::;.::::;~~'::::4 ml '°' 1tNc.t ""il h v-.,,~ n iw:·A~ 1;;.icp,.ltt t,f~A 

tOlS\~1G?-,1rr.Tt r lS:>,\,~'U 

To1-rrrr.500 ,1i.1Sli ww. ......... ~IFI.CCO 

h timJ tcd 

0 
A~·cragc l abor ,f ully Burdened Cost o f St.>n.ice 

....'. l ime Pe r I Hou, ly Rate Per Act ivity 

Aeli\.ity thou1\) j 

h isting Cost 

Cuuenl f ee RNowrv 
PercC>nta_ge 

Ill 
050 226 1U w ~ 
050 30I 152 11, 815' 

Ill , .oo 30I 1,217 586 "" 
l<I 

·- - - - ---
Actu.itCost Actual Cost --

_Q!_ 
I.SO .£_ 30I "' "' --~ 

.!!! AcludC01t 330 

0.50 s --304 s 1S2 "' 
-~-

I.SO s 233 s 349 m I07ll 

1.00 $ m $ m 182 7811 

I.SO $ m s '" m 765' 

1.00 L m s 3Z1 181 ~ 
~ Actual Cost 

l<I --- - - Actual Cost .L 
0.50 30I 1S2 w 9711 

---------
1•1 Actual Cost 330 

l•I ActvalCo1t Actual Cost --- ·- · ---
2.00 s 30I 603 586 '"' 
1.00 $ 30I 30, w "" 2.00 _s_. ~ 603 ◄69 77% w----- ·- Actual Cost 11£\Y ----
1.00 $ 233 m m ,.,, 
LOO $ "' 226 129 S7" 

1.00 $ m m NEW " --~ _$ ___ 30I 30, "' 96½ 

~ .:.--- -- - Actual Coit 330 

'f -. • - - - > • ------·- -------

6/13/2013 

htinuted 

Volum('of 

Acli\·ity 

100 

----
----
---

- ·---

APPENDIX A 

Annu.11 htimllcd Rc\·~•nue~ 

Cu rre nt f ee run Co\t 

12,◄33 15,209 

- --- -
s _s ___ 

T s 
s $ 
$ $ 

s $ 
J ____ ~----

- ----
s 

----- - ----
s 

---- $ _s __ ._ 
- -- -~-- - - ----

$ - s 
s 

---- .£. _ _ 
-·--------

COS IJ'....J(. , P11t 9 d t 

P54 



APPENDIXB 

Comparative Fee Survey 

Prepared by NBS fo r the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 

P55 



SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 
Community Risk Reduction Division• User Fee Study FY 23 
Comparison of Charges for Fee Related Activities and Services 

Sacr.1mento Metropolitan Flre District 

, .. 
Ho, fnOuut,Jl'H CWrtfttfH 

A. PERMITS TO OPERATE 

I Additive Manufacturing NEW 

2 Aerosol Products (tirst 500 lbs.) 469 

3 Amusem ent Bulldlngs 469 

4 Aviation Fadlitles 938 

s Carnlwls, fairs, and Sped al Ev-ents 469 

a. heh additional booth, ohibits, etc. 24 

b. Outdoor asstmb:Y events (greater than 1,000 
people) 

NEW 

6 CeHulose Nit rate Film 469 

1 Combtatib!e Oust Ptodudng Operations 469 

8 Combustlb!e fibers 469 

9 Compressed Gasn 469 

a. t;rbon d'.oxlde systems NEV/ 

10 Covered Malls 1,875 

11 Cl)'Ogenk Fluids 469 

1l Cutting aOO We!dillg 469 

13 Ory Oeanlng Plants 469 

14 Energy Storage Systems NEV/ 

IS Exhibit a rnf Tr;ade Shows 469 

16 EYp!ost\'tsor Bla)tlngAgents 586 

NBS- local Government Solutions 
\Veb: www.nbsgov.com Toll-Free:800.676.7516 

M Colt 
R1m11yfu 

608 

608 

913 

1,117 

$ 913 

$ 30 

1,825 

608 

608 

608 

$ 608 

$ 608 

$ 2,433 

$ 608 

$ 608 

$ 608 

$ 608 

$ 608 

760 

APPENDIXB 

Con\r,1 (O\lJ (OU"lt~ f F'O (O\UIT'O<'I (50 Ftc\no OrJnt:.(" CoJnty 'i.lulm<nlo 

no comr,,orison avoi.'obfe no comparison ovoJloblt no comparison a\'Oilob!e no comparison a,oi/.obk r,o comparison ovoiloble 

279 305 no comparison o...afloble 217 296 

279 S96 no comparison aw,)loble 202 733 

558 S09 no comparison O'JOIJoblt 202 733 

Pim Revlew, t:o lnsp: 

349 $122 no comparison tn'Ollobk $ 202 $ 332 

Plcin Re\iew, lnsp (regul,11r 
01.lring 8usineu Hours: hours): $566 

$UO per 1/1 hr 
Plan ReV.ew, lnsp no comparison ovoilobk no comporison o.,.oilob!e no comparison avallob!e 

Afte, Buslneu Hours: (ow rtime hours): S798 
279 rhr 

During Bus:neu Houts: 
$140 per 1/2 ht 

no comparison a-1a/Joblt no comparison O','OYobJe no compomon avo/Jab.le 

After Bus!neu Houu: 
279 r ht 

419 30S no comparison o"Jolloble no comparison a,o/Joble 296 

Up to 2,500 sf: $279 
611 

2,SOCH sf: $S58 
no comparison m'Olloblt no comporllon amiJab~ 441 

558 305 no comparison O\'Ofloblt 202 no compafUon ovoiJoblt 

$ 349 509 no comparison o"'°IJobk 2l4 296 

$ 279 no compo1ison cr.'olJobk 395 no comparison a10!Job.le no comporUon o\'oi.lablt 

$ 349 916 no comparison ovol lob!e no comparison a,'Ollobk 1,06Z 

$ 349 509 no compo1Json wolJob!e $ 168 $ 296 

$ l49 305 no comporlson ovoiJob!e $ 138 $ 296 

$ 349 407 no comparison ovoiJoble $ 1S2 $ 369 

no comporison ow,Uoblt no compon"son m-oiloblt no comparison avoiJob!e no comparison a,'Oilob.~ no compori.son avoiJob!e 

no comporiJon <n'OiJoble 407 no compo1lso11 ovo/Joble r,o comparison cr,'0/loblt 587 

Up to 100 lbs: $5S8 
712 

101h lbs: $838 
no comparison O\-oilobk 202 441 

6/ll/202l Page 1 of 14 

P56 



SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 
Community Risk Reductlon Division~ User fee St udy fY 23 
Comparison o f Charges for Fee Relat ed Activities and Services 

Sacnmento Metropolitan Fire District 

'" H., 
C\lntntfH 

17 Fire Hydrants and Water Control Val\·es 

18 Flammab!e and Combustible Uqukfs '69 $ 

a. Use/Operate/Aepafr Pipeline 586 $ 

19 Floor Finishing $ '69 

20 Fruit and Crop Rtpentng s <69 

21 Fumigation and Jnsectldd.al Fogging $ 

22 Han rdous Materials 586 

23 HPM Faciritles 586 

2< lilgh Pile Storage 586 

25 Hot Work Oper•llons <69 

26 lnduHrial Ovens 586 

27 Uthtum Batt eries NEW 

28 Lumber Yards & WoodwOfking Plants 586 

29 Liquid or Gas Fueled Vehicles In Assemb:Y 586 

30 LP Gas <69 $ 

ll Magnesium <69 

32 Miscellaneous Combustlb~e Storage <69 

33 Mob!le Fuerrnc of H\-drogen•Fue!t<I Veh!des NEW 

34 Motor Fuel o;spenslng Facilities <69 

35 Plant Exttutlon System "" 

NBS - local Government Solutions 

Web: ww\v.nbsgov.com Toll•Free:800.676.7516 

APPENDIX B 

608 279 $ 30S no comparison ovolJabte no comparison cr.-o/Job!~ no comporiJon O\'OiJob~ 

Class I l!qufds >S g.illons

lnslde: $349 

Class I liquids >10gallons 
-Outside: $S58 

a .issllorClasslllA 
liqulds >25 gallons- Inside: 

$349 

760 Oa.ss 11 or Class Ill A liquids 

>60 gallons-Outs!de: 
$349 

608 349 

608 279 

608 tloCharge 

1-5 products: $279 
1,217 5-10 products: $838 

llt products: $1,395 

1,217 $ 1,395 

760 
Up to 5,000 sf: $S58 

5,000+ sr: $838 

608 140 

760 558 

608 no comparison avoifablt-

760 $ 558 

760 279 

o;spense, Store, Use: 

608 
$349 

Operate Plant: $558 
Exchan,:e Cylinders: $179 

608 419 

608 558 

608 no comparison ovol.loblt 

608 $ 558 

913 $ 279 

509 no comparison ovai'oble S 156 $ 296 

204 no comparison 0\-oiJobk no comparison ovollobf.t 296 

407 no comparison ovotloble- no comporlson O\"Ollobr.e 296 

JDS l'>O comporiJon ovoilabk no comparison cr,'011ob!,e no comporiJon ovoiJob!t 

509 no comparison ovoilable- $227 -$234 .. 1 

712 no comparison ovoiloble no comparison o-.'oiJob.l.t 697 

509 no comparison ovailobte 397 369 

305 no comparison ovo&ble 184 296 

30S no comparison ovoiloblt 18< 296 

no comparison avolloble no comparison ovoi/oble no comparison avoUobJe oo compotiton ovoiloble 

509 no compari.Jon ovoi!oble $ 332 551 

204 no comparfson O\'Oilob!e s 202 no comparison ovoiJobk 

407 no comparison ovai!oble S 149 $ 296 

509 no compo,ison ovollob!e 202 296 

30S no comparison avoiloble 202 <41 

no compa1ison ut0iJobk no comparison O'.IOiloble no comparison o-1ojlob.'e no comparison o-.10llobk 

509 no compor;son ovoiJob!e 184 $ 369 

901 no comparison ovoiJob!e r.o compo,1.son a-roIJobk $ <OS 

6/13/2023 Page 2 of 14 

P57 



SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 
Community Risk Reduction Division - User Fee Study FY 23 
Comparison of Charges for Fee Related Activities and Services 

, .. 
Ho, 

36 

37 

38 

39 
,o 

41 

42 

43 

« 

Sacramento Metropolitan Flre District 

f1t011ut,llon 

Open Burnlng (Burn Permit) 

Open Flilmes and Tore.hes 

Open flilmes and Candles 
Organic CoaUng.s 

Places of Assemb:y 

a. S0-99 

b.100·299 

d. 300 or m01e 

Private llydu nts 

P,.,Totethnk Specb l Effects 

a. Fireworks Ae,lal o;sp!ay 
1. 60 or less shells 

2. 61 to 120 shells 
3. 121 to 180 shetls 
4. 181 to 240 shells 

S. 241 or more shells 

b. Flrei,,,:orks Retail Stand 

c. Fireworks Set Pltces 

1. With Aerial Olsp!ay 

2. Without Aerial Display 

d. rt,e,..,-o,ks- special effects Pyrolechn'c effects used 
In moUon pkture, te!eV:don, thutrical and group 
entertainment (flut 2 hou,s) 

1. Each additional hour 

Pyroxylln Plastics 

Refrtge,aUon Equlpmtnt 

NBS - Local Government Solutions 
Web: w.w,.nbsgov.com Toll-Free:800.676.7516 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 76 

$ 456 

$ 456 

586 $ 760 

234 456 

373 760 

586 913 

469 608 

1,406 1,82.5 

1,6.U 3,042 

1,87S 3,0'2 

2,108 3,042 

2,343 3,042 

373 456 

234 $ 304 

469 $ 913 

469 $ 608 

234 304 

469 604 

469 608 

APPENDIXB 

279 30 no compamon ovofloblt 202 186 

279 no comparison 0\'01.lobk no comparison crJOilob!e no comporison avollobk 223 

279 407 no comparison ova/lob~ no comparison 0-10/Joblt 296 

Occupancy load 50-100: 
$349 305 no comparison ovailobk ,oo 

Occupancy load 101-200: A•I: $<65 
$558 

305 no comporiJon pvoibbte 400 A·2 & A·3: $281 • $387 
Occupancy load 201-299: A-< & A-S: $S63 

$558 
O<cupancy~ad 300+: 407 no compotlson ovoilobk 8S6 

$838 

no comparison oya/Joblt 305 no comparison O\'OJlobk r,0 comparison u10Vobk no comparison crm/Jobk 

unng us!f'less ours: 
$698 first 2 hours llome Comln& & Barge 

$140 per 1/2 hr add'I Per Shoot: $2,064 679 
Otsplay:$539 

no comparison ovo/Jobk 

After Business Houis: $279 July 4th d!spbiys: $1,946 

1 
no comparison CMJUoble 318 $ 34S 192 no comparison ,noiJoble 

During Bus:ness Hours: 
$558 first 2 hours 

$1<0 per 1/2 hr add'I Per Shoot: $853 679 no comporlson avo/lob.'e no comparison ovoilabk 

After Business Hours: $279 

per hr (2 hr mln) 

During Business Hours: 
$S58 nut 2 hoors no comparison O\'Ollobk $ 871 $ 259 

$1<0 per 1/2 hr add I 
Per Shoot: $1, 28S 

After Business Hours: $279 no comparison ovoilobk no comporiJon OYOilobJe no compardon ovoiJob!e 
per hr (2 hr min) 

279 509 no comparison ovoilob!~ no comparison avo/lobf.t no comporiJon ovoilobk 

419 305 no comparison ovoilob!e no comporhon ovolloble 296 

6/13/2023 Page 3 of 14 

P58 



SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 

Community Risk Reduction Olulslon - User ree Study FY 23 
Comparison of Charges for Fee Related Activities and Servlces 

Fu 
Ne. 

Sacramento Metropolitan fire Dhtrfct 

4S Repair Guages and Molor Fud·Oispens!ng Facilities 

46 Rooftop Heliports 

47 Spraying or Dipping 

48 Stonge of Scrap Tlres 

49 Temporary Membrane Structure 

a . 400- 1,499 s.f. 

b. 1,SOO- 2,999 s.f. 

a. 3,000- 5,999 s.f. 

a . 6,000 s.f. and abo-.-e 

50 Tire Rebuilding Plants 

51 Waste Handling 

52 Wood Products 

53 
Occup.ancles Y.~th 2 or More Pe rmits, heh Addition.al 
Permit 

NBS - local Government Solutions 
Web: www.nbsgov.com Toll-Free:800.676.7516 

MC.II 
lltcove.,yfA 

469 $ 

1 -4 repair bilys: $349 

608 
5-8 repair bays: $419 

Greater th;m 8 reparr bays: 

$558 

469 608 279 

469 608 349 

509 no compo/Uon D\'OiJoble 

509 oo comparison ovoiloblt 

509 no comparison available 

APPENDIX B 

less than 5,000 sqft: $266 
Greater than 5,000 sqft: 369 

$283 

no comporison cnoilobk 223 

381 296 

509 no comparison ovoilob~ 202 405 
516µ.. _ _____:7c_:60+'-------- .....::S5::8_1-" _____ ....:::::+======:::...J__,:_--- --=-l-"-- - ---...:.::'-j 

469 

586 

702 

819 

586 

586 

469 

59 $ 

760 401 sq/h - 699 sq/ft, $1◄0 

913 700 sq/ft - 5,000 sq/ft: 

1,065 
$279 

1,217 
S,OOOt sq/ft: $419 

760 558 

760 558 

760 558 

76 no comparison ow,J,'obk 

624 

509 

509 

712 

fOf multiple operatlooal 
permits, the highest fee 

utegoiy 1,1.ill be assessed. 

Renewa.l Fees: 
Cat 1:$207 
Cat 11:$382 
Catlll:$557 
C.t IV: $732 

Cat V: $732 t $11S/hr 

6/13/2023 

no compariJon OYOiloblt 

no comporison ovoi1obJ.e 
202 $ 186 

no comparison CT,'OJlobk 

no compo1ison ovoilobk 

no compo1lso11 O\'OilobJe no comparison cnoilobk no comparison crJO/lob!e 

no comporiJon ovailoblt 202 no comporlson O'JOJlob~ 

no comporison m•oilobk no comparison cr1ailob!e 405 

no comparison avoilobk no comporbon Cl\'01Job~ no comparison O'IOilob.'t 

Page 4 of 14 

P59 



SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 

Community Risk Reduction Dlvlslon - User Fee Study FY 23 
Comparison of Charges for Fee Relate d Actlvltlcs and Setvlces 

Sauamento Metropolitan Fite District 

APPENDIXB 

' , .. 
No, r11ouqu.a Omllllfte 

MIC.,1 
RtC9'1tl'yfU 

CootrJ Co\ l.J (ou'ltj fPO CoH;mn..-\ CSD f ,n.,o Ot<l"l.., Co11n1v 'i..Hr.:amr.,to 

B. OCCUPANCY INSPECTIONS 
1 Commercial Oa U re 

a. 7-49 persons 

b. 5().149 persons 

c. 1SO or mOfe per.sons 

2 Educatlonal 

a. Occupant load 1·99 

b. O<Cupant ~ad 100-199 

c. Occupant load 200-499 

d. O<cupa.l\t loa.d SOOt 

3 lnstitutk>nal 

a. Hospitals 

Pre•lnspectlon (R·2.1, R·3.1 and R·• Facilities· H&S 

13235 

a. Facilities w\th 25 or less persons 

23-1 

469 

SS6 

234 $ 

469 $ 

586 $ 

NEW 

1,875 $ 

234 $ 

6-08 207 no comparison ov,oJJoble 9·14 persons: 269 

913 $279 t $4 puunit 382 no comporlson ovoJJoblt $2S9-$294 
15-49:$369 

S0-99: $369 

1,369 S57 no comporilon u.-oiloblt l0<h:$369 

913 Occupant load le.n than 382 
SO: $349 

Occupant load 50-149: 

1,217 
$558 

557 
()(cup.i nt load 150-499: 

no comparison ow,iloble $ 415 no comparison ova/Job~ 

$558 
Occupant load 500 or 

1,521 greater: $838 132 

1,825 no comparison O\'OL'obk no comparison a-toiJobJe nocomporison aroJloble no compo1Json ovoJlobte r,o comparison o-•o/Joblt 

3,954 $558 + $4 per patient/bed $ 1,432 no comparison owJiJoblt 

6-08 382 

All A O<cupancy > 10,000 
square feet aggregate: 

$415 

All A Occupancy< 10,000~ 
square feet aggregate: 

$<66 

All A Occupancy> 10,000 
square feet aggregate: 

$415 

no comp,orison ovolJob!t 

-1- - --------- - - ---+--- + ----j nocomporison o~'OiJob~ I---- - ---, 
26·100 beds: $S57 

101·300 beds: $732 
301♦ beds: $907 

no comparison ovoilobk no comporl.son ovoilob/e 

b. Facilities v.i th 26 ot more persons 469 $ 

NBS - local Government Solutions 
Web: www.nb5gov.com Toll-Free:800.676.7S16 

913 

6/13/2023 

All A Occupancy< 10,000 
square feet aggregate: 

$466 

Page S of 14 

P60 



SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 

Community Risk Reduction Division - User Fee Study FY 23 
Comparhon of Charges for Fee Related Activities and Services 

Flt 
No. 

5 

6 

8 

Sacramenlo Metropolitan Flre District 

, .. o,...,, ..... 

High fuse lmpe<tfom 

.. B- 7 to 10 Stories 

b. 8 - 11 or more Stories 

Residential Apartments 

a. Up to 4 units 

b. 5 · 25 Units 

c. 26 • 100 Units 

d. 101 - 300 Unlts 

e. 301 + units 

Residential Care Facilitles/SlciUed Nuulng Facirtties Initial 

fire Clearance/Annual Inspection 

a. 7•25 units 

b. 26-JOO units 

c. lQ0.300 unlls 

d. 301 or more units 

Annual Inspection Hotel/Motel 

a. 7•25 units 

b. 26-100 units 

c. 101-300 units 

d. 301 or more units 

NBS ~ local Government Sotutlons 
Web: ,w,w.nbsgov.com TolHree:800.676.7516 

1,S23 1,977 
Pre 197-4: 1,94-4 

Post 1974: $486 + $0.00S 
1,875 2,433 

s .ft. 

117 4S6 

352 608 

526 913 $364 • $4 p~, unit 

S79 1,217 

826 1,521 

3S2 913 

527 1,217 $243 t $4 per unit 

703 1,521 

878 1,82S 

3S2 760 

527 913 
$364 t $4 ptr unit 

703 1,217 

878 1, 521 

6/13/2023 

APPENDIXB 

732 
no compo1lson ovoiloble $ 72S oo comporison c»'OllobJt 

907 

3·1S ♦ units: $44 

207 no comparison ul0i1ob~ 16-30 units: $23S 
31-60:$308 

61-100, $381 
382 no comparison ovoilob~ 101-150: $451 

151-200: $527 

5S7 no comparison 0\'0/Job/e 
201-250: $599 

251-300: $672 

<SO units: no comparison 30h350: $672 

732 51•150 units: $311 351-~00: $74S 

>150 units: $S18 401-4SO: $818 

4S1-500: $982 

907 S01+:$892 

382 

5S7 
7·16 units: $415 

no compo1ison o~'Oilobl~ 16t units: no comparison 145 

7J2 
available 

907 

382 3·8 units: $296 

<SO uniu: no comparison 9-16 rooms: $369 
557 avoIJobk 17-30 rooms: $441 

no comparison ovoilobk 
SJ-150 Ullits: $31J 31-60 rooms: $514 

732 
>150unlts:$518 61-90 rooms: $624 

907 91-120 rooms: $69J 

Page 6 of 14 

P61 



SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 
Community Risk Reduction Division· User fee Study FY 23 

Comparison of Charges for Fee Related Activities and Services 

, .. 
Ho. 

9 

10 

11 

Sacramento Metropolitan nre Olstrict 

Commttcial Business Inspections 

.. 0-2000 sq. ft. 

b. 2001-5000 sq. ft. 

C. S,001-10,000 sq. ft. 
d, 10,001- 20,000 sq. ft. .. 20,001- 40,000 sq. ft. 

40,001-80,000 sq. ft. 

g. 80,001 - 120,000 sq. ft. 

h. 120,001- 150,000 sq. ft. 

I. 150,001- 200,000 sq. ft. 

J. 200,001- 500,000 sq. ft. 

k. S00,001 sq. ft. Of greater 

Storage Fadrttles 

\ 1frth Interior Couldors 

Without Interior Corridors 

2+ Permits, uch adcfitlonal permit arte r first permlt 

NBS • l ocal Government Solutions 
Web: \w1w.nbsgov.com Toll-Free:800.676.7S16 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 

117 $ 
2l4 $ 

352 $ 
469 $ 
586 $ 
703 $ 
820 $ 
938 $ 

1,055 $ 
NEW $ 

N EW $ 

786 

528 

73 

456 

684 

913 

1,141 

1,369 

1,597 

1,82S 

2,053 

2,281 

3,042 

3,954 

1,217 

913 

76 

APPENDIXB 

I 
Co nlr.J ( O\t .J ( ou'll t FPO Co u,mn,·, C\D f tr\no OrJnt;l' CocoOIV \Jtrlrrtnlo 

: I 

no comparison o,'Oilab~ no comparison a,oi!obk 152 

no comparison twoilobk- no comparison a,olSoblt 152 

no comparison O\'OLloblt no comparison umi!ab.'t 1S2 

no comparison O\'Ol.bbk no comporison m'OfJob.l.t 152 

no comparison O\'OLbbk: l'IO compariJon o-,,oL'ob!t 1S2 

no comporl5on ovoJbblt no comparison avai.'oblt 1S2 

no comporlson OYDL'oblt- no comporlson ovoJJoblt 1S2 

no comporlson ovolloble no comparison O\'OiJobk $ 1S2 

no comporison o,,,::iiJobk no compo1bon o-Jai.'obk $ 1S2 

no comparison cn'OJJobk no compo/Uon cr101Joble $ 152 

no compotiJon Ol-'01.'obJe no comporhon u10JJobk $ 1S2 

no comparison O\'Ollable no comporhon u1al!ioble no comporlson ova/Jobie 

no comporiJon o~-oL'obJe no compo1ison a,,aiJoble no compofllon cwolJobfe 

no comparison O\'Oi!oble no comparison a,,oi!obk no comparison ovolloble 

. ' - - ~- -- -
-- .... __ ---- --- - - - - -- -- ---

6/13/2023 

no comparison crtaiJob~ no compafllon m·ailoblt 

no comporUon a-1ailob~ no comporison ovollobk 

no comparison cr,oiJob.le no comparison ovaiJobJe 

no comparison a\'Ollabk- no comporlson avo!labk 

r.o comparison cr.-oJJob.le no comparison ovol.'obJe 

1>0 comparison u,'Oilobk no comparison ova/Jo bk 

r,o comporison o-.10iJab.'t- no comparison OYOllobk 

r.o comporiJanowJIJob!e no comparison ovol!obJe 

no comporiJon ovoilob!e no comparison avaJ.lobk 

no comparison availob,'t- no compotbon ova/JobJe 

no compariJon O','Olloble no comporfson ovoiJobk 

no comparlsonovolloblt no comporiJon cr.-ollobJe 

no comporiJon ovoi/ob!e nc comparison avoilob.~ 

no comparison ovolJob!e no comparison avoilob,te 

Page 7 of 14 

P62 



SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 
Community Risk Reduction Division• User Fee Study FY 23 
Comparison of Charges for Fee Related Activities and Services 

Sam1mtnto fl.elropolit~in Fire Dhtrkt 

IHHt. lu DUOI,.,.. 

C. DEV£LOPMEUT PlAH REVIE\IJ AUD INSPECTION 

Abo\-ttrOOJ~ Tank lnstallalk>n, Fbmmab~/Combu1tib!e 
Uqlnds triton\ 
ComprtuNI GUM 

a. Addillomlllnlc mh 

Admln:Sttation c.huge: for Ruubmi11ah, Upon 2nd or 
f1oth01,1r 

Subsequent Rtv'.s.ton 

a. Additk>nal HOOJrs ptthOl.lt 

Sas!c BuJd·nJ Rt \";tw 

a. f,'inOJ Pllln Rt\.~e·N, 0-Jtt the Counter pupro;ect 

b. 8alkContlN<llon Ft t pttpro;ect 

C. CommHdal Usu (New COMUUCtion} 

1. 0,001 -10,000 s..f. perpro!tct 

2. 10,001 • 20,000 s.f. per pro!tct 

3. 20,001 • S0,000 s..f. per pro!« t 

4. >50,001 s.f. su ltdpers.f. 

d.C.Omrnttdlll Rt1ldt ntlal and Multifam.':yRuldt!n!la 

UJu flewBLi.!' ) 

1. 0 - 10,000 s.f. ptt pro!tct 

2.10,001 • 20,000 s.f. ptt pro!ect 

3. 20,001 - 50,000 s..f. p trpro!ect 

4. >50,001 s.f. su1td per s.f. 

e. Convnudal 51orage /Wu ehouse (Ht"N 8u"hrlf'II 

1.0•SO,OOOs..f. pttpto)tct 

2. 50,001 • 200,000 s.f. p trpro)t!ct 

l . >200,0CJl s.f. scaled per sJ. 

f,Commerdal Uses (Tenanl lmp,owmtnt) 

), 0,001-10,000s.f. ptr proJtct 

2. 10,001 - 20.000 s.f. ptrpro)tct 

3. 20,001 • S0,000 s.f. per proJtct 

4. >S0,001 s.f. sultd per s.f. 

HBS - Local Government Solutions 

Web: w .vw.nbsgov.com Toll-Free:800.676.7516 

... 911 ss 

26l 5 31 no comparison u,vibb!t 

26l 456 

26l , .. " 
l31 m r.o comporiJon u.ra!.Ub!< 

26l 913 r.o comparison a.-o!Job~ 

456 1,217 

I.OOS 1,511 

1,151 2,129 

0.01 0 .04 

786 1,369 
$817 ♦ $0.07 pee .squue 

footinnuu of2000sq. 
1,087 ~ fL 
1,663 1,119 

0 .02 $ .... 
SS6 1,369 

1,2&5 1,129 

0.01 

m 1,117 
$558 ♦ $0.07 per .squzre. 

1,1.U 1,Sll foot In uctn of 2000 sq. 

1,5X> 1,977 
ft. 

0 .02 . ... 

6/13/2023 

APPENDIX 8 

Iv 

l,11 $3S8 t $10 Alch. .... :rtj Fee 6lS 
no comporbon u..al!ob.lt 

39 nocomp,3ri1on ovoL'ob.~ no compotlson u,-oLbb,~ 

Upon 3rd or Subsequent 

17 Rt\.~Sion 11 hour 
minimum}: $202 no comporiJon u.-o!Jobk 

17 no comp,or/so11 V.10ibb.'t no compolU011 CMJtbbJt 

Engirlttrin,g Silt Plzn 
$189.25 

W/ 3 ot lus h\'dUnls • 
IMludts one pfan rt\.~tw 

Convnertia1: $1,65◄ 
and one on-site A.'I A Occupancy> 10,000 

W/◄ ormorehydranlS• 
acctptan<e tttt/fi~I squilre fttt agg.regatt: 

P{an Re\.~r...-: $12'3 per 

Commtrdal: $1,917 
irupe,Uon. $ 1,615 

hour 

S!n&!e Family C>A'tl:'.:ng Not to be USt!d for l'itW AIIAOccvpar"¥t:Y< 10,000 
and/OJ Acctssory Buil([ng 

alarm/sprin\:ler/supptenio .squue fttt 
Inspection: $0.l0pet sq. ft 

with an apptO',-ed permit 
ns~ttms. auregate:$1,066 

of rtlt ue: $S38 

Atchiltclural Plan Rev!tw: 
lndudu $10arch:W\I ft!e 

$519 plus $0.16 per sq. r1. for fire Dist rict vse. 

Page 8 of 14 

P63 



SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN flRE DISTRICT 
Community Rls1c Reduction DMslon • User Fee Study FY 23 
Comparison o f Ch.uges for fee Related Actlvitlu and Se rvices 

Sacramtnto Mt tropo!/t,n Fire Dbtrlct 

fHHf, fuDuat,lfff 

C. DEVElOPMEffTPlAH REVIEW AND INSPECTION 

1- t(~h Pi!ed Stora&e Rad (Tenant lmptO'\'tment) 

J. 0,001-10,000 s.f. perpro!t<t 

2. 10.001-20.000 s.f. per pro;ect 

3. 20,001 - 50,000 s.f. pUf)(O!ect 

4. >S0,001 s.f. suledpe, s.f. 

Certif1Ute or Re!ean uch 

Compressed Gas Sysltm 

a. CO2 bt:,·uage c:ftspens!ng pupro!«t 

b.Med!<"a!Gn per project 

a. Iii office consu:t perpro;«t 

1. Additional hoors per hOUt 

b. Out or office consu:t f1ut 2 hours 

1. Additional hours perhoor 

fiuthour 

1. Addition;d hours per hour 

[merr;ency Ruponder Rad!0Ccr.·er11e (£RRC) per hour 

fi re A.!Jrm Sysltm 

,. 0-25 OeV:ces per pro~«t 

b. 26-50 Dev:ces perp,o)ect 

per p1o!«t 

d. 100 °' more per pro~ect 

ptr prO!tCt 

f. Commun!catlon up1i.dt per pto~ect 

Are Flow/Hydnntlen each 

10 Flte Sptlnkkr S·/lttm • Commttdal (tlt 'N lllst,~atloo) 

a.1·99 sprinUers ptr project 

b. 1~199 sprin\Jers per pro)tct 

c. 200 or more spr'in!Jers per project 

11 Ate Spdn\Jer System-Commerdal (T.1.) 

a.1·99sprinlders per p1o)tct 

NBS - local Government Solutions 
Web: www.nbsgov.com Toll-Free:800.676.7516 

m 1,065 $5S8 + $0.07 pu square ... 1,369 foot in tween of 2000sq. 

l ,285 1,673 It. 

0.0} 0.03 

393 913 no compotison O"IO!bbk 

655 913 
837 

524 1,369 

U1 3CM 

261 30, no comparison tr.-oJabk 

m 609 ss 

261 304 no comparison o,-oL'cbk 

NEW 304 

NEW 30; 
no comparison 11\o'Ol~b!e 

N£W ... no comporison u,oibb!e 

S60 1,217 

us 1,673 

740 2,-433 
$698 + $10Jm dt\~Ce ... 3,954 

161 1,065 

262 1,06S 

m 608 ss 

m 2,738 
$972 + $050 ptr he.id> 

6SS 3,346 10 

1,310 4,2S9 

"' 1,06S 
W/o U ~CIJ!.itions: $SS8 ♦ 

$0.SO per htad >10 

6/13/2023 

APPENDIX B 

" .. nd 

P!Jn Rt\•!ew: $129 per 

no com,otison 1r.-0Uob.'-t r,o comporis011 uo'oL'obk s 1,235 
hoor 

lnspecOon:$0.10 ptr sq. ft 

no compor;s'3n a.-oibblt no comporison a..o&ble no comporison a-,'Oi.bbJ.t r,o comporison o,..-oi.bb.'-t 

668 

5 S09 no comporison tr1'0iJabk 296 

1,195 

175 r,o comporison cr,,:i tbb.'r M compo1ison V.'O!.\::>b~ r.o comporiJon tr,'ODobk 

no comparison a-~ibbk no comporis:on o·,oilob.'e no comparison O'.-oi.bb!e r.o comparison cr.'OiJobJ.t 

no comparison u,-oiklb.'-t no compordOn ovoibble no comparison O','Oibb.'-t no comparison ovoi.bb.'e 

t 
6-lS De.✓.cn: $591 

1 • 25 DtV:ct-1:$1,303 $59457 
heh add",tJo,ul 25 Dtv.cu 16-30 DtV.cu: $999 nocompanlon avallab!e 

Sm h<h additional dt\~Ce: $7 
>30 DW.ces: $1,353 

$ .,. $ 18 no comparison cr.-o~'ob!e no comporiJon cr..oL'obk 

1 • 99.Sprif\Utrs: $1,918 
1-20 sptin\lers: $810.81 

<100 heads: $718 

£achAdditloinlSO 
21-100 sprinUus: $8S7.80 no compotison O'.'Ol!obk 

Sprin\le.rs: $331 
101-300 sprin.lltrs: 

>100 heid1: $834 
$69-4.79 

<15 heads: $384 

11- 25he.ids:Sn7 

Page 9 of 14 

P64 



SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE OISTRICT 
Community Risk Reduction DMslon • User Fee Study N 23 
Comparison of Charges for Fee Related Activities and Services 

Sauamtnlo Mtttopo!ltan Are District 

fHHt, 

C. OEV[l OPMEITT PLAN RMEWAJID INSPECTION 

b.100-199 sprintdtu prrpro!tct 

c. 200 or mofe sprin\1,rs perpro!ect 

12 ,.~aster Sp,inUtr Plan Production Homes per p!an 

13 Spritu1tr System Subd!v'-1lori Productfon pe:r p~,n 

" Rn.'ldential Sprilll:ftr System (T.I.) per plan 

!S RtsldtnUal Sprinkler System {Non•Prodoction) ptr ptOJt<t 

16 CIH n A&,tnt Suppru$!on System or Equa:I per proJr<t 

17 Hood & OV<l flre Supprr,$!onSystem pusysttm 

18 f,hpp;n,g fte- (1.e . tlt"N subd:V:sforu/site p!ans) 

Eltdronk Format 

l.0· 25 1oU per pro!tct 

2.26· 1001011 prr proJe<t 

3. 101 or more lots per pro!ect 

19 A.fter Uours 

a. Plan Al!:\-:ew 

1. Arst l hours first lhovrs 

2. h eh additional hour per hour 

b. Inspection 

1. Fltst 2 hou1s fiut 2houn 

2. £u h acfcflt.ional hour per hour 

20 Sitt Pfall RtV.tw 

a. Perimeter fendnJ / Gatu per pro!t<t 

b. Chit lmptO\·ement perp,o;ect 

21 Underground nre Supp!yUnt (ht 3 H\,'!S,anb/Rliers) perpro!t<t 

1. Each addltlonal l Hydn nu per h~'drint 

22 EvacvatJon Pl, n ReV:tw perpro~-r<t 

23 Smo\e Control or Smoh rm.lust svitem1 perpro]«l 

NBS• Local Go\'ernment Solutions 
Web: WWJJ,nbsgov.com Toll-Free:800.676.7516 

,.. 1,445 

664 1,825 

m 760 

m 913 

1,06S 

6SS 1,521 

6SS 1,369 

m 1,117 

m 304 

S24 ... 
Sl4 913 

285 667 

51. 333 

m 667 

S24 333 

S24 1,065 

m 1,217 

S24 1,673 

131 760 

Sl4 1,217 

Sl4 2,738 

APPENDIX B 

Heh additiooJI 2S hu1h: 6Sl 26-99 hH d l: $59] m compotuon o-.-oL'ob/t 
W/ cakulalloru: $69! ♦ $ 717 

$0.SO pe:r head> J O >100 hUdl: $836 

837 81 M comporiso n ai'o&Jbk no comparison a-;V/.bblt no comparison o-.-ol)ob!t 

837 61 no comporiJon O\'O~'ob,'e no compo11s<m O\ULbb!e no comparison O"o'Olab~ 

no comparison o-.'OL'ob.~ ◄l S4 no comporUon a-,"l>Llob~ no comporisOfl o-,-otbbk 

SSB r,o compgrison O-,'O!l::Jblt no compo/'Uon a-,-onob!-t no comparison u,o!bb1t 

l ,116 no compolUon ovo!Jobk no comporiJon cr.-oUoblt no comparison O\'O.:Joblt 

SSB no compo/'Uon u.-.,:tobt~ •1s 33 

no compo/'Uon a,'Oibb~ f'iO comparison v,orb b.~ no comports on a.-o!.\:tblt no comporilon cr,-oi.'ob.~ r,o comporiJon al'Oi.'.,b!-t 

ss 387 l! 

no compotuon u,'Otloblt 
l7 no compotuon a.-oUobl! r.o compo11Jcm ul'O:JobJe 

ss 387 2 1 

no comporiJon a,o:bb.~ 

l $ no compo1ison a,oi.bbk f'iO comporiJon cn-o:.'ol;k 

r,o compotd'Ofl a.-ai!ab!.t 11 
NoChu gt no comporiJon iuoi.bb~ r.o comparison CM:>lhb~ 

r,o comparison a10IJaMt r,,o comparison ovolkib.~ 

r,o comporiJon u.'o/Job!~ nocomporiJ011 a-1Di.bblt oo comparison a.viJob!e 
1 tf)'drant: $57S 

Each additional: $182 
no comparison o-..aL'ob.'e 

no compordon a .vi.bble No ehu ge nocomporisona.-ol.'ob}-t 1>0 comparison a,-oi.bb.\! no comporison v.-oib?l!-t 

l,9S 2,0 3 r,o comporiJon cnvfubk l,◄S2 r.o comparison O\'Oi.'obl,e 

6/13/2023 Page 10 of 14 

P65 



SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT APPENDIX B 

Community Rfsk Reduction Ohrhlon- Use, Fee Study FY 23 
Compa,lson of Charges for Fee Related Activities and Servf<es 

Sau•mento Metropo~un Fire Obtrltt 

, .. ,, .. rt1Typ1/Uill1 

C. DEVEl OPMENT PlAH REVIEW AUD INSPECTION 

24 Sp~yBooths perpro;ut 

25 Cel!To-...-u (CMJts!de roof, po?e, etc.) pt tptO]Kt 

26 LPG G;n Tank lnstalfallon- Commerdal perproJ«t 

27 LPG Propi ne Tin\ Install• Res!denllal pe.,pro!ect 

pupro!ect 

29 ttamdous Materia ls 

a. Hazardous ,,h teria:S Dispense/Use 

per project 

MC.It 
lhttTUYIH 

91) $ 83 

393 760 Mcomporisong..oi.bb!,t 

428 $ 760 

$558-$837 

393 760 

1,572 1,521 $ ],95 

NEW 1,521 

Ho e,tin,u:Shll\g system: 
$865 

W/ e>.tiJi1u'.shln1 $'($1t.m: 

$1,567 

$357.94 + $10 Atdi.Y.ng , .. 731 $ 

52 l'IO conipordon o-.'Oi.lobk no comporison cr,'Oiloblt no comparison O'l.'Oibb.~ 

29 

29 

1,144 nocompa,JJono-,'Ol'ob/.t 

2. fuh additional 5 chem!ols 1,521 1--------,l---- ----------·l-----,l----+- - --l no comparison a"1ihb~ nocompori5on a.,;iibb/.t r.oco~risona.-a!..'ob.'t no comparison a;olbb!<- r.ocornpatuon a ,'Ot'ob/.t 

b. Hau1dous Materl1lsStora1e 

pH project NEY/ 

1. 1-S chemicats per pcoJecl NEW 1,5 21 

2. £uh addition al 5 chtm!cals per project NEW 1,521 

f---1-'.,..''_w_P,_n_, :_, 00_ R_u_ld,_n_li•_
1 
_ _____ -l---- - -l-- - - 1-,---

760
-l nocomporisonc,10i.bb~ $ 

Commetdal 913 

ptt p,o!e:<l ,,. 
perp,o!ect S14 

lo< 
S31 Mcomporisona,,;it:bb.'t ,_ ______ , r.ocomporiJon o-,'OOOb.le 

483 

31 Enerrv StorageSvslems 

a. Re:s!dentbl perpro;e:ct NEW 91l 

I. Re:sldenUal ESS M1iiter Plan. Subd:v'.s!on Home per p,oJe:ct NEV/ no comparbon a.-ollob!e no comparison a,'01.lobJt M comparison ao'IJLbb.'t r,o compori1on u,-olbb.lt no comporhon u,-oJ:Ob!e 

n. Res!dentia l ESS SubdMs~oo • Production Homes per pro!e:ct NEY/ 304 

b.Commerd al pupro!ect NEW 1,281 

32 Te:mpor.uy8ll''.::dltlg Use per project S14 913 no comporisOl'l a;o/Job!e 790 no compol'Uon u.,o!bb.'t no comparison a-.'Oi.lob~ no comporfJon u ,'000~.'e: 

3l Te:mpor1rySa!tSTUi1U per pro!ect NEW 913 nocomporisona .-oi.lob!t 511 r,o comporiJon O\'Oil;Jb.l.t M comparison 0\-oi.bbk no comporiJon O\'OLlobft 

NBS - local Government Salutlons 
Web: Wl.w.i.nbsgov.com Toll-Ftee:800.676. 7516 6/13/2023 Page 11 of 14 

P66 



SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 
Community Risk Reduct ton Division- User Fee Study FY 23 
Comparison of Charges for Fee Related Activities and Servkes 

APPENDIX B 

Sam1mento Metropo!it,n fire District 

rnNt. FHTyp:t/Uftll CWr&IIFtt • .::~ .. 

C. 0£VHOPMUIT PLAN REVIEW AHO INSPECTION 

" Satelt;te Te!n--:11on Leiter per p,o;ect ,., 304 no compolison O'.'Olbb.'~ no comparison a"ol'Oilib!t no comparison owi-'ob.'t no comporisOII ulOibb.lt no compori.son 11'.'0il:Jb,te 

" Will Serve Leiter Pro<Udl'IJ ptrJ)(O!tct l6l 304 r,o comparison o-.,,llab~ 
' $ 

18 nocomporison u.vtkib.le na comparison cr.-olbbL! 

l6 Cl)'OJtn!c Ftulds pe,pro!ect NEW 913 no comporuon u,,albb.~ no comporison cr;olkib~ no compo1fson trM;!obJt no comparison u.-olbb.lt no comparison O'o'Oi.bb/.t 

l7 , rammab!t ud Combustible Uqukh per p,o!ect NEW 1,217 no compor:Son a-.'0ilob!iC' no comparison ovollot.!~ no Com;<)rison tri'Ol.bb.lt t\O comparison O't0f\:Jb.lt no comporison o'IOibb.lt 

,. foel Ct:I Power Systems per P4'0!tct NEW 2,281 M compol'Uon o-.<oi.\::Jb.'t no comporison crJOllat.~ no compatlson 0"4',)JobJt no comparison cr,oi!ob.lt no comporison 1r.,,i.bblt 

l9 Gu Otttctioo Systems perpro!«t NEW 913 no comporiJon u.vi.b b!e' no comporison cr,,aiJob.\! no compo<iJon o-.,,;»b.lt no compoti.son u,oibb.!t no comporison v ,-oiJob/.t 

(0 lndustrbl 0.-tn per pro!e<I NEW 913 no comparison u;oibb!t- no comparison o~"Oibt!t- no comparison o-.-o.bbJt t\O compot:Son ovoi,b b.lt no comparison v.vWb,'-e 

41 MotOfVdide Rt pait Rooms 2nd Booths pupro~ed NEW 913 no comporlsonu.'l:lilab.'t no comparison tr,'0/Jat.~ no com~Eson o.ut.bb.lt nocomporison crlOlbbJt no compo,lson v,,,ibb!iC' 

4l P1ant[rtrution per J)(O~ect NEW 1,369 no comparison u.'l)IJob.'iC' r.o comporiJon o-,ol.bb!~ no comporison 111,ui.bb.lt no comparison tr,'01.bbJt ;,o compo,ison v;oikib/.t 

4l Spe<bl £\~nt Structures pupro!«t NEW 9U no camporison u.,ailJb.~ no comporison crJOl.bbk no comporbon u;ro!Job.lt t\O compoti:son a-,o!bb.lt no compo,bon VIOl.bb~ 

.. Haunted Hovse ptrpro;ect NEW 913 no compotison o-..aik'>b.'t no comparison owl.bb.'t no compotison u.-&!Job.'-e no comporiJon tr,'OLlob.lt no comparison a-,oi.bb.'e' 

45 (nhinced v,por RtCO\'l!ry S\'Sltm ptr pro!ect NEW 608 no comparison o-.'Oibb.'iC' no comporiJon O\'Oi.bb!t no comporison o-.o;.bb!.! no compotison o-lOL\Jb!IC' no comporison o,olbb!e 

<6 IOos"/8ooth/Spedal Conce-n!ooJ In Man (temporary) perpro;ert NEW -456 no camporison o-.'Clilab.~ no compo,;son a•-alkib.'t no comporlson cr.v~'oMt no comparison O','Oibb.'-e no com,x,rison cr,o/lab~ 

47 Spu)t.111 and Dfpp'n1 ptrpro!t ct NEW J,l 17 no comporison o-.-.:illab.~ no comparison ov.,llob.'t no compo1ison cr,oi.bb!t no comparison u,'Oikib:t no comporison cr,oi.lab!IC' 

•• Standpipe Syittms per pro!tct NEW J,S:U no comporuon tr.-'Clfbt.'t no compotison O\'Ollab.'IC' no comµnlson OV11Lbb!t no comparison umibb.lt no compo,Ison o-mlbb.'-e 

UBS• Local Government Solutions 

Web: www.nbsgov.com Toli.Free:800.676.7S16 6/13/2023 Page 12 or 14 

P67 



SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 
Community Rl$1c Reduction Ofvlsfon • Us er Fee Study FY 23 

Compuison of Charges for Fee Related ActMtles and Servkts 

Sactamtnlo Met1opolitanflle District 

0. MlSCELIAHEOUS 

Administration Ch111u (i.e. Wttd Abatem,nl}{ptr 1/2 

"' hour) 

2 Adcttlo:-.al lnsptctlon/Rtlnspt<11on (pt1 1/ 2 hour) "' 
3 Apptals $.86 

Cop!u of Reports, Photo,nphs, etc. (see SMF - Plib~c 
Records Act Po!;cy) 

5 O:.St1lct Appuatus En·,u1fflCY ReipoNl!/Stand-B-, Actual Cost 

6 Commuc:ial htse Alum Coit RK<>''l!,Y (ptt mponu) 

a. Pro<en!n1 and lnsptctfon r~t/111!<1 (pet mponse) "' 
b. SUpprtn!on Unit Ruponse Cost (l)tt hour) uo 
c. lnspec1ion Fo~ow up 1ar1tr initial corre<tion m 
notke) (pu 1/2 hour) 

7 lrt\'l!st'l.1Uon Fee Colt Rtco-.'l!ry (first hour) 373 

each additiorul hout 111 

ln\'l!Sli111Uon Fu (Constnxtion Without a Pumil) • {Out 
373 

hoo,) 

each adO.tlonal hour 181 

9 11.onilont\& Rl!'qu·,td £vacuaUon Ori:ts J.ctullC01t 

10 UtirsenUV Caustd fire £mercency 3)3 

Ruu ,ch of Dlstrkt Rl!'cords (per l/2 hour) (p!us copy 
11 ch,11ge of $1.00 ro, the fw-st paie: p!us $.10 Pl!f p1ge 1'l 

therufttr) 

12 
Ruponsu PaUent A.ubtan<e Requut from "F« Ptofit" 

330 
C.lref,1d[tlu 

1l sundb-t PtuOMt lOf Safety Offi(l!l Actual Cost 

14 
Technk.11 flll'port/AlttrnatA'I! t,hlll'fhl Of Ml!'thod 

Sl6 
Proces.slii1 {2: hourmlntmum) 

15 lost Ftte P~rmit card 147 

" 
Speoal ltlspecUon Reo.vests (tlol othl!'tv.l.st sptoli~d In ,., 
ftt schl!dv!I!') 

17 Cm1it Card Ptocus:f\g r~e N[W 

UBS- lo<al Government Solutions 
Web: w.vw,nb1gov.com TolJ.Free:800.676.7516 

APPENDIX 8 

Ill r.o compordon 0-,'01.!,blt s 104 r.o compotison o;'Oib!>Se r,o comparison o-.-oLbb.lt r,o comp.'31ison v10i!ablt 

m 1'0 s 104 ., 101 7l 

1,117 no com pardon O'.-o~blt r,,o compo1ison o-,-oJob~ r,o comparison o-,'Oibbk r,o compo/'Uon u,-oilobJt no comporison O',<oi.bbJt 

0.20 o.zs 5 tY.J comporilon o-,oJa!,Jt 

Ac1va1 Cost r.o com,P<Jr4on v,-otbb!t- no comparison o-tllibb!I! r,0 comporiJon o.-oi}Jblt r,o compor:Son v,o&b.lt r.o comparison O','O!b!>Jt 

... no comporiJon O-,'Oi!obk rn comports on aoo;bbk no comporison c-.ioll.,blt 

At1va1Cost 
> 3 (al.st alum rll'port1: In > 3 b~e abrm rtpott, In 

r.o compotlson ovo.lbb.le nocompordon O'IO:bblt r.o comparison O','O!.bb.lt 
1goda\'S: $406 12 month,: $207 

m r.o cotnpori.Jon O-iO~lt r.o comparison O".-o!bb.le r.o compofUon a,-oibbk 

... r.o compordon v10ibb.lt rv., comporison o.-oi'ob!t ,,., compariJon o-.-o.lbblt no comparison v,'Oi.bb.le r.o comparison O','l:J{bblt 

m r.o comporisono-o'Ol.bb~ no comporifon cr.'OI'ob~ M compofDon v.-o.lbb.le r.o comparison O'o'Oibbk r.o comparison a:oibb.lot 

"' r.o co:n;.orison cro'Oi'o~ no comparison v,-olbb~ M con,potiJon ovolbbk no comparison a,-oibbk r.o comparison ovo:bbJt 

327 r,0 comparison cr.-otbb.lt r,o comporiron o-..a~bJt tlO compotuon o-,-olbbk no compot&on 0','0/bbk r.o comf{Jri:son a,'Oibb.11!' 

Actual Coit r.o comparison cr.-o!Job.\t NoChar&t no comporiJon o-o'Oibbl.!- r.o compotlson O'IO:bb.11!' no comporison O'.-olbb.11!' 

ActvalCost MCOfflF()r".SOflO'IOi'oblt r,o compori1on o-.-o~bk tlO comporilon o-o"Oi.'obk r.o comporOon o,,-oLbbk r,0 com;.orison cr.-oiJobJI!' 

m r.o comparison a.-o:'obl.:- 82 no comparison o-.-oibbk r.o compotuon o-,'1:Jlbb.11!' r.o com,c:orison a;i;,ibbJt 

Artval Cost r.o CO(TlpatiJon Q','Ol.bb.lt no compotiJon o.-oJoblt r.o comporiJon V.'Oil.1blt no co.mporhon o,-oi.bblt r.o comµ,rison O'IOibbl! 

Actual Coit r.o comparison O','Oihb!e flO con1poruon arol'ob:~ M comparisOfl ovo;lob.~ r.o comparison cr.-otbbk r.o comf{Jrison u.-oJbb~ 

... 5S! 1,017 .., <04 r.o comF<)rlson cro'tli!obJI!' 

.... r,o CO.Tlporison O'IOilJblt 75 r.o comparison o-.-oiblllt no comparison a.-ol,bbk $' 26 

608 r.o comparison o-.-oI:ob~ r.o comporison <h-o:.!ob!t tlO compolUOII tt.....,;A,blt r,<> COtnFOtison a,-o!.bb.le r.o comµ,rison o-.'OCob~ 

Actual Cost no compor.don a,"Oi:bb,e r.o comporison aroZob:.t tlO comparison a.-olbbk no compordon o."Olbbk r.o cont~rison a.io,'bblt 

6/13/2023 P,1ge llof 14 

P68 



SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN f lAE DISTRICT 

Commun tty Risk Reduction Division• User f ee Studv FY 23 

Comp:artson of C.harces for Fee Rel ated Activities and SeMces 

Sunimtnlo Mtlropoltan Fire Oblrfct 

APPENDIX B 

, .. ... c:.wrwat, .. .. :: .. I (.,.,1,l(O u C0u·1; f ro (o,,.,=t,C.CI , ,,,.,, O,.lf'lt'(t~·,~ \,Mf i ""'#rlo 

I 

D. l,!ISCEUAN£0US 

18 Coit Rt<O\-ery Bastd on Actualll,r,e (prr hour) 

a. fin lnvuttiation ,,. 233 r.o compa1do11 a,'Oi'aMt r,o compc,rison at0tbb!t r,o compariJon IT,'O~blt r,,:, compor.Son O'.'O:b~'-4! no comparison D,'Oibb~ 

b. Weed Abuemtnt 119 21& no compa,don a,'O(."'oMt 207 M compotbon a-,'O!.bbk r,o comparuon ot0.:.bb.~ M com pot is on 0','01.bbk 

c. Code Comp!.llnl N!W 

d. l1Up«tlon & Permit Suv·.cu ,., 
"' f-'------..._:'.:..:"~------'':.:.07+"$ _ _ ___ .:..:""°''f-'------~'0:.:.21-'-____ ___;:1-',<5 

330 Actual Cost no compa.,don a...,.l>~:t r.o comporirM a.ui!ob~ r.o compori.Jon ai'O.bb!~ r,o comparison a,'OJobk no com po/Hon o,-olbb~ 

uas -local Gove,nment SoluUons 
Web: www.nbsgov.com Toll-free:800.676.7516 6/13/2023 Page: 14 of 14 

P69 



Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 

10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200 · Mather, CA 95655 · Phone (916) 859-4300 · Fax (916) 859-3702 

Dan Haverty 
Interim Fire Chief 

DATE: July 27., 2023 

TO: Board of Directors 

SUBJECT: Award Recommendation - RFP 23-02 Workers' Compensation Third
Party Administration and Cost Containment Services 

SUMMARY 

The Human Resources Division with the assistance of the Purchasing Division, conducted 
a Request for Proposal (RFP) process to select a workers' compensation Third Party 
Administrator (TPA) for the District's self-insured workers' compensation program. 
lntercare Holdings Insurance Services, Inc. is being recommended as the selected 
proposer. 

BACKGROUND 

The District presently utilizes the services of a TPA as a component of its workers' 
compensation program. The contract with the District's cl,lrrent TPA, Sedgwick, was set to 
expire on June 30,• 2023, and a RFP needed to be issued. The agreement with Sedgwick 
has since transitioned to a month-to-month agreement until the transition to the new TPA 
is complete. 

DISCUSSION 

On March 31, 2023, staff issued RFP 23-02 to seek qualified TPA firms to provide claims 
administration for the District's self-insured workers' compensation program. The RFP was 
posted on opengov.com and the District's website with a submission due date of May 3, 
2023. The District received five responsive proposals from the following TPA firms: 

• lntercare Holdings Insurance Services, Inc. 
• TRISTAR Claims Management Services, Inc. 
• Keenan & Associates 
• Acclamation Insurance Management Services, Inc. 
• Athens Administrators, Inc. 

An evaluation panel comprised of four Metro Fire employees, including a member of Local 
522, reviewed and evaluated the five proposals. Each proposal was thoroughly and 
carefully reviewed by the panel using the following criteria: 

• Contractor Qualifications and Experience with Providing Services of agencies of 
a Similar Size, Scope, and Complexity 

• Staffing & Qualifications and Experience of the Proposed Program Team 
• Program Understanding & Methodology 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties 

P70 



RFPAward 
Page2 

• Program Transition & Execution 
• Past Performance 
• Cost 

After reviewing ancj evaluating the written proposals, lntercare, TRISTAR, Keenan & 
Associates, and Athens Administrators, Inc. were invited to an interview with the 
evaluation panel. Interviews were held on June 26 and 27, 2023. lntercare Holdings 
Insurance Services, Inc. received the highest total aggregate score. Based on the final 
rankings, the evaluation panel unanimously agreed to recommend lntercare Holdings 
Insurance Services, Inc. as the selected proposer. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The term of the TPA Contract will be for three years with the option to extend for up to two 
additional 12 month periods starting with fiscal year 2023/2024. The annual claims 
administration fees for the five years are as follows: 

FY 23/24 $557,000 
FY 24/25 $573,710 
FY 25/26 $590,921 
FY 26/27 $608,649 
FY 27/28 $626,908 

No additional appropriations are necessary for FY 23/24, as funds were already budgeted 
in the preliminary budget. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the Board of Directors authorize the Fire Chief to enter into a 
contract for TPA services with lntercare Holdings Insurance Services, Inc. 

Submitted by: 

M~ 
Human Resources Manager 

Approved by: 

( ~)-'" AA .. k~~ -
oan M. Haverfy 
Interim Fire Chief 

P71 



Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
l I 

l&u~ 
10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200 • Mather, CA 95655 • Phone (916) 859-4300 • Fax (916) 859-3702 

Dan Haverty 
Interim Fire Chief 

DATE: July 27, 2023 

TO: Board of Directors 

SUBJE.CT: Adopt Resolution Authorizing the Medical Treatment for Workers 
Compensation Injuries 

SUMMARY 

At the direction of the Fire Chief, staff has worked with the District's General Counsel on 
the proposed Resolution authorizing the Fire Chief and/or his/her designee to approve a 
request for medical treatment made by an injured employee's physician as part of the 
District's UtilizatioJl Review process enacted under California Law. The District has 
enacted the statutory Utilization Review process as provided and described in Labor Code 
§4610 to ensure quality standardized care for injured workers in a prompt and expeditious 
manner. 

BACKGROUND 

The District has an interest in providing medically necessary and reasonably prompt 
medical treatment to employees who have been injured in the course and scope of their 
employment with the District. Medically necessary and reasonably prompt medical 
treatment to injured employees can lead to a more timely recovery and rehabilitation of 
work related injuries allowing employees to return to work in a reasonably expedited time 
frame. 

DISCUSSION 

The recovery from work related injuries and facilitation of an employee's return to work not 
only directly benefits the employee, it also benefits the fiscal and operational needs of the 
District by reducing workers compensation leave usage, reducing medical leave usage, 
and reducing the overtime costs for other employees who are paid to cover the shifts and 
assignments of the injured worker. When an injured employee provides the required 
documentation verifying the treatment sought is medically reasonable and necessary, the 
District desires to implement an action which permits the Fire Chief to make decisions on 
whether the treatment is medically reasonable and necessary in certain noncomplex, 
straight forward cases, and approve the treatment, prior to review by a physician under 
Labor Code §4610 under the criteria and conditions set forth in the resolution. 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties 

P72 



Page 2 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The fiscal impact is unknown at this time, however the District will continue to monitor any 
savings or additional costs to the Workers Compensation Program. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the Board of Directors adopt the Resolution authorizing the Fire 
Chief and/or his/her designee to approve requests for medical treatment made by an 
injured employee's physician under the criteria and conditions set forth in the resolution. 

Submitted by: 

Human Resources Manager 

Approved by: 

Dan M. Haverty 
Interim Fire Chief 

P73 



Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
l I 

~.~ 
10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200 • Mather, CA 95655 • Phone (916) 859-4300 • Fax (91 6) 859-3702 

DAN HAVERTY 
Interim Fire Chief 

RESOLUTION 2023-XXX 

A RESOLUTION THE SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 
AUTHORIZING THE FIRE CHIEF TO APPROVE MEDICAL 

TREATMENT FOR WORKERS COMPENSATION INJURIES 

The following findings and Resolution by the Board of Directors of the 
Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District is issued and intended to provide discretion to the 
Fire Chief and/or his/her designee to approve a request for medical treatment made by 
an injured employee's physician(s) as part of the District's Utilization Review process 
enacted under California law. The Board of Directors hereby acknowledge the following: 

' 

WHEREAS, The District has an interest in providing medically necessary and 
reasonably prompt medical treatment to employees who have been determined to have 
been injured in the course and scope of their employment with the District; and, 

WHEREAS, medically necessary and reasonably prompt provision of medical 
treatment to injured employees can lead to a more timely recovery and rehabilitation of 
work related injuries allowing employees to return to work in a reasonably expedited 
time frame; and, 

WHEREAS, the recovery from work related injuries and facilitation of an 
employee's return to work not only directly benefits the employee, it also benefits the 
fiscal and operational needs of the District by reducing workers compensation leave 
usage, reducing medical leave usage, and assisting with assignment of other 
employees to cover shifts, assignments, and activities, and reducing the overtime costs 
for other employees who are paid to cover the shifts and assignments of the injured 
worker; and, 

WHEREAS, the District has enacted a statutory Utilization Review Process as 
provided and described in Labor Code §4610 to ensure quality standardized care for 
injured workers in a prompt and expeditious manner; and, 

WHEREAS, an injured employee is required to prove that the treatment sought is 
medically reasonable and necessary, the District desires to implement a resolution 
which permits the Fire Chief to make decisions on whether the treatment is medically 
reasonable and necessary in certain noncomplex, straight forward cases, and approve . 
the treatment, prior to review by a physician under Labor Code §4610. 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties 

P74 



RESOLUTION 2023 -XXX 
Page2 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE DISTRICT ESTABLISHES THE FOLLOWING 
POLICY AND DIRECTIVE FOR THE APPROVAL OF REQUESTS FOR MEDICAL 
TREATMENT BY INJURED EMPLOYEES: 

1. Any request for medical treatment made the employee's physician to the 
District and not approved by the District's Third Party Administrator under 
its pre-approval authority provided by the District, shall be referred to the 
Utilization Review Process pursuant to Labor Code 4610 for review by a 
licensed physician as to approval, denial, or modification of the treatment 
request. 

2. The Fire Chief, and/or his/her designee shall be authorized to approve the 
treatment as part of the Utilization Review Process prior to review by a 
licensed physician under Labor Code §4610 under the criteria and 
conditions set forth herein. 

3. In order to approve requested treatment, the treatment shall be 
recommended by a medical doctor. The medical doctor must specifically 
state that the requested medical treatment is reasonable and medically 
necessary, that the injury arises out of and during the course of 
employment with the District and must provide scientific data generally 
accepted in the medical community to support the request. 

4. The medical doctor who has made the request must specifically describe, 
based upon current scientific data generally accepted in the medical 
community that any available alternative treatment protocols are not 
acceptable or preferred for the particular injured employee. 

5. The medical doctor who has made the request shall specifically state that 
any denial, delay, or modification of the proposed medical treatment will, 
or could be reasonably expected to cause further injury or negative health 
consequences to the employee or prolong adverse physical conditions 

· from which the employee suffers or create permanent long term health 
impacts upon the employee. 

6. Any decision of the Fire Chief and/or his/her designee which denies 
approval of the requested treatment shall be in writing and state that one 
or more of the above criteria has not been established by a 
preponderance of the evidence. 

7. Any decision of the Fire Chief and/or his/her designee shall not create any 
precedence for any further decisions under this Resolution. 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties 
P75 



RESOLUTION 2023-XXX 
Page3 

8. The Fire Chief and/or his/her designee may review in his/her discretion, 
requests for medical treatment on their own accord, upon written request 
by the employee or his/her attorney, or upon request by the District's 
Third-Party Administrator. Any decision to review a request is in the 
discretion of the Fire Chief and/or his/her designee under the authority 
provided by the Board in this Resolution. 

9. The review of any requests for medical treatment hereunder shall not act 
as a waiver by the District or any employee of the District of the Utilization 
Review procedures, or the appeal of Utilization Review by an independent 
medical review under California Labor Code §4610, or case law applying 
and/or interpreting these statutory provisions. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 27th day of July 2023. I, MARNI 
RITTBURG, BOARD CLERK OF SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 
HEREBY CERTIFY the foregoing Resolution was introduced and passed at a regular 
meeting of the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District Board by the following roll call vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

Attest: 

Marni J. Rittburg, CMC, CPMC 
Clerk of the Board 

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 

President, Board of Directors 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties 

P76 




